
TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

Council Chambers, Municipal Office 

Monday, October 7, 2019 7:00 PM 

 Page 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

2. O CANADA  

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 a) Additions, Deletions or Amendments 

All matters listed under For Information Only, are considered to 

be routine and will be enacted by one motion. Should a 

Council member wish an alternative action from the 

proposed recommendation, the Council member shall 

request that this matter be moved to the appropriate section 

at this time.  

 

4. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

 a) Pecuniary Interest Form 4 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 a) Previous Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019 5 - 9 

6. PRESENTATIONS AND DELEGATIONS  

 a) William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)  10 - 23 

7. NEW BUSINESS  

 a) Staff Reports  

  i. Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)  24 - 33 

  ii. Appointment of Deputy Clerk (K. Campeau)  34 - 36 

  iii. Appointment of Lottery Licence Issuer (K. Campeau)  37 - 39 

  iv. Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)  40 - 46 

  v. Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. 47 - 112 

Page 1 of 223



MacDonald)  

  vi. Place St. Laurent Phase 5 Capacity Allocation (E. MacDonald)  113 - 115 

  vii. Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist 

Museum Bathroom Renovations (E. MacDonald)  

116 - 120 

  viii. Stone Dust Quotation (E. MacDonald)  121 - 122 

 b) Other Business  

  i. Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)  123 - 173 

  ii. Martintown Mill Harvest Dinner - Request for Donation (L. 

McDonald)  

174 - 175 

  iii. Notice of Motion for Consideration At This Meeting - Provincial 

Electronic Delegations (S. Jaworski)  

176 - 177 

  iv. Burn By-law Review  (L. Warden)   

 c) Committee Reports  

  i. Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019 178 - 182 

 d) For Information Only  

  i. Fall Planning and Building Open House and Information Session 183 - 184 

  ii. Hazardous Waste Day 185 - 186 

  iii. Consent Application B-78-19 187 - 190 

  iv. Consent Application B-79-19 191 - 193 

  v. Consent Application B-82-19 194 - 196 

  vi. Notice of Consent Decision 197 - 199 

  vii. Consent Summary 2019 200 - 201 

  viii. SDG Council September Newsletter 202 

  ix. OGRA Newsletter 203 

  x. Letter - Building Code Services Transformation 204 - 205 

  xi. Letter - Proposed Changes to the Aggregate Resources Act  206 - 207 

Page 2 of 223



  xii. Joint and Several Liability Consultation (Township of Springwater)  208 - 211 

  xiii. Resolution - Pupil Accommodation Review Guideline (North 

Glengarry)  

212 

  xiv

. 

Resolution - Bill 108 (Newmarket)  213 

  xv. Resolution - Legal Aid Funding Cuts (Chatham-Kent)  214 - 215 

  xvi

. 

Resolution - Mandatory Septic Reports (Hastings Highlands)  216 - 217 

  xvii

. 

Resolution - Upper Thames River Conservation Authority 

(Township of Zorra)  

218 - 219 

  xvii

i. 

Support Resolution - Reducing Litter (Mississippi Mills)  220 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 a) Unfinished Business Listing - October 7, 2019 221 - 222 

9. CLOSED SESSION  

 a) BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council convene to Closed Session to 

discuss the following item(s) under Section 239 (2) of The Municipal 

Act S.O. 2001  

 

(2)  A meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the public if the 

subject matter being considered is, 

 

(f) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege; 

          -Legal Advice – Identifiable Individual 

 

10. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  

 a) Confirming By-law 66-2019 223 

11. ADJOURNMENT  

  

 

Page 3 of 223



 
 
 

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
 
 

I,  _____________________________________, declare a 

pecuniary interest on Agenda Item(s) for the meeting of 

__________________: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Signature 

Pecuniary Interest Form

Page 4 of 223



 

 

MINUTES 

 

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION 

OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY WAS HELD IN THE 

EVENING AT THE TOWNSHIP OFFICE, LANCASTER ON SEPTEMBER 

16, 2019.  

 

PRESENT: Mayor Frank Prevost, Deputy-Mayor Lyle Warden, Councillor 

Stephanie Jaworski, Councillor Martin Lang, and Councillor Sam McDonell  

 

STAFF PRESENT: Clerk Kelli Campeau, GM Infrastructure Services Ewen 

MacDonald, GM Corporate Services Lachlan McDonald, GM Community 

Services Joanne Haley, Fire Chief Dave Robertson and Roads Manager 

Chris Leblanc.  

1. CALL TO ORDER  

Resolution No. 319-2019                                   Moved by Deputy Warden 

                                                                 Seconded by Councillor McDonell 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the September 16, 2019 Council Meeting of the 

Township of South Glengarry now be opened at 7:00 pm. 

CARRIED 

 

2. O CANADA  

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Resolution No. 320-2019                             Moved by Councillor Jaworski  

                                                                       Seconded by Councillor Lang 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

approve the agenda as amended. 

          -Added to Other Business: 

               -Housekeeping Resolution – Garbage Collection Contract 

          -Moved from Information Only to Other Business: 

               -7.d.iii. OPP Commendation – Fire Staff 

               -7.d.vii. Proclamation Request – Child and Youth Safety and    

                Wellbeing Month 

               -7.d.viii. Alzheimer Society – Dementia Friends Day 

               -7.d.xi. Resolution – Provincial Electronic Delegations 

CARRIED 

 

4. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

 

a) I, Lyle Warden, declare a pecuniary interest on an agenda item for the 

meeting of September 16, 2019: Staff Report 7.a.ii. (Site Plan Control) as 

the applicants are my parents.  

 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a) Previous Meeting Minutes - September 3, 2019  

Resolution No. 321-2019                            Moved by Councillor McDonell 

                                                                       Seconded by Deputy Warden 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry held on September 3, 2019, 

Previous Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 5 of 223



including the Closed Session Minutes, be adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED 

 

6. PRESENTATIONS AND DELEGATIONS  

a) OPP Update - Norm Lamontagne  

Sgt. Lamontagne provided an update and statistics regarding OPP calls 

for service for the time period of January 1, 2019 to present. 

 

b) SDG Library Update - Karen Franklin  

Ms. Franklin provided an update regarding programming and new 

initiatives at the SDG Library. 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS  

a) Staff Reports  

i) Establish Connectivity Committee  

Resolution No. 322-2019                                  Moved by Councillor Lang 

                                                                  Seconded by Councillor Jaworski  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 106-2019 be received and that By-

law 59-2019, being a by-law to establish a Connectivity Committee for the 

Township of South Glengarry be read a first, second and third time, 

passed signed and sealed in Open Council this 16th day of September, 

2019.  

CARRIED 

 

ii) Site Plan Control Agreement - Warden  

Resolution No. 323-2019                           Moved by Councillor McDonell 

                                                                      Seconded by Councillor Lang 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 107-2019 be received and that By-

law 60-2019, being a by-law to enter into a Site Plan Control Agreement 

for the property legally described Part Lot 18, Concession 2, I. L. and 

Being Parts 3 and 4 on Reference Plan No. 14R-6088, in the geographic 

Township of Charlottenburgh, now in the Township of South Glengarry, 

County of Glengarry also known as 6275 Boundary Road be read a first, 

second and third time, passed, signed and sealed in Open Council this 

16th day of September and furthermore that the Mayor and Clerk be 

authorized to execute the Site Plan Control Agreement. 

CARRIED 

 

iii) Tender 09-2019 - Smithfield Park Building  

Resolution No. 324-2019                                  Moved by Deputy Warden 

                                                                  Seconded by Councillor Jaworski  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 108-2019 be received and that 

Tender 09-2019 for the Smithfield Park Building be awarded to Bourgon 

Construction as per their submission of $346,582.00 Plus HST and that 

Provisional Item #2 for in floor heating at a cost of $3,150.00 Plus HST be 

included with the project; and furthermore that the Mayor & Clerk be 

authorized to sign any relevant documents.  

DEFEATED 

 

iv) Andrea Ave. Median/Tim Hortons Parking  

Resolution No. 325-2019                                 Moved by Councillor Lang 

                                                                 Seconded by Councillor McDonell 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 109-2019 be received and that 

Council direct Administration include the widening of the shoulder on the 

Previous Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 6 of 223



north side of Cannon Street and curbing on the south side of Cannon 

Street to accommodate the parking of 2 transports in the 2020 Budget. 

CARRIED 

 

v) Fairview Road Extension  

Resolution No. 326-2019                             Moved by Councillor Jaworski  

                                                                      Seconded by Deputy Warden 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 110-2019 be received and that By-

law 60-2019, being a by-law to declare Fairview Road as an open public 

Highway from the east side of SDG 17 to a point opposite lot 49 

Concession 1 N.R.R. for 0.4 km be read a first, second, and third time, 

passed, signed and sealed in Open Council this 16th day of September 

2019.  

CARRIED 

 

vi) Approval of Job Description - Director of Parks & Recreation    

Resolution No. 327-2019                            Moved by Councillor McDonell 

                                                                  Seconded by Councillor Jaworski  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 111-2019 be received and that the 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry approves the job description 

for the Director of Parks & Recreation. 

CARRIED 

 

vii) Review  Glengarry Nor Westers and Loyalist Museum L. McDonald   

Resolution No. 328-2019                                  Moved by Councillor Lang 

                                                                 Seconded by Councillor McDonell 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 112-2019 be received and that the 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry provide an additional $20,000 

of funding to the Glengarry Nor’Westers and Loyalist Museum for the 2019 

year. Council approves that it will create an overbudget position for this 

line item and furthermore, that it will be reconciled with the entire budget at 

year end. 

CARRIED 

 

b) Other Business  

i) Donation Request - Lancaster Fall Harvest  

Resolution No. 329-2019                                   Moved by Deputy Warden 

                                                                 Seconded by Councillor McDonell 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

approves the request of the Lancaster Fall Harvest in the amount of $300 

from the Grants and Donations discretion fund. 

CARRIED 

 

ii) Proclamation - CN Rail Safety Week  

Resolution No. 330-2019                                   Moved by Councillor Lang 

                                                                 Seconded by Councillor McDonell 

WHEREAS Rail Safety Week is to be held across Canada from 

September 23 to 29, 2019; 

 

AND WHEREAS it is in the public’s interest to raise citizens’ awareness of 

the dangers of ignoring safety warnings at level crossings and trespassing 

on rail property to reduce avoidable deaths, injuries and damage caused 

by incidents involving trains and citizens; 

Previous Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 7 of 223



AND WHEREAS Operation Lifesaver is a public/private partnership whose 

aim is to work with the public, rail industry, governments, police services, 

media and others to raise rail safety awareness; 

 

AND WHEREAS CN has requested that Council adopt this resolution in 

support of its ongoing efforts to raise awareness, save lives and prevent 

injuries in communities including our municipality; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township 

of South Glengarry supports national Rail Safety Week to be held from 

September 23 to 29, 2019. 

CARRIED 

 

iii) Housekeeping Resolution – Garbage Collection Contract 

Resolution No. 331-2019                            Moved by Councillor Jaworski  

                                                                  Seconded by Councillor Lang 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Township’s current contract with HGC 

Management for Household Waste Collection be extended to November 30, 

2020 in order to align with the expiration of the Township’s current Recycling 

Collection contract and furthermore that the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to 

sign any relevant documents. 

CARRIED 

 

iv) OPP Commendation – Fire Staff 

Council expressed congratulations and thanks to the fire staff receiving OPP 

Commendation. 

 

v) Proclamation Request – Child and Youth Safety and Wellbeing Month 

Proclamation to come back to Council at the October 22, 2019 meeting. 

 

vi) Alzheimer Society – Dementia Friends Day 

Staff to organize ‘Wear Blue Day’ during month of September. 

 

vii) Resolution – Provincial Electronic Delegations (Township of Larder Lake) 

Support Resolution to come back at October 7, 2019 meeting.   

 

Resolution No. 332-2019                                   Moved by Deputy Warden 

                                                                       Seconded by Councillor Lang 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

accepts the items presented on the agenda as Committee Reports and For 

Information Only. 

CARRIED 

 

c) Committee Reports  

i) Cornwall Regional Airport Commission Minutes - July 3, 2019  

ii) Agricultural Advisory Committee Minutes - August 26, 2019 

iii) Landfill Advisory Committee Minutes - August 28, 2019 

iv) Committee of Adjustment Minutes - September 3, 2019  

 

d) For Information Only  

i) Statement of Revenues and Expenses  

ii) Fixed Assessment - Cornwall Golf and Country Club  

iii) Consent Application B-64-19  

iv) Consent Summary 2019  

Previous Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 8 of 223



v) Notice of Consent Decision  

vi) Letter - Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing - More Homes More 

Choices Act  

vii) Letter - Solicitor General - Public Reports Regulation  

viii)Resolution - Producer Packaging Requirements -City of Kitchener  

ix) Resolution - Single-Use Disposable Wipes - City of Kitchener   

x) Support Resolution - Library Services   

xi) Support Resolution - Farm Safety  

xii) Support Resolutions - Amalgamation   

 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

a) Unfinished Business Listing - September 16, 2019  

 

9. CLOSED SESSION  

Resolution No. 333-2019                             Moved by Councillor Jaworski  

                                                                 Seconded by Councillor McDonell 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

convene to Closed Session at 8:59 pm to discuss the following item(s) 

under Section 239 (2) of The Municipal Act S.O. 2001:  

 

(2)  A meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the public if the 

subject matter being considered is, 

(d) labour relations or employee negotiations; 

          -Hiring Employee – Identifiable Individuals 

CARRIED 

 

Resolution No. 334-2019                                  Moved by Councillor Lang 

                                                                      Seconded by Deputy Warden 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council now rise and reconvene at 9:54 pm into 

open session without reporting. 

CARRIED 

 

10. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  

Resolution No. 335-2019                            Moved by Councillor McDonell 

                                                                        Seconded by Councillor Lang 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-law 62-2019 to adopt, confirm and ratify 

matters dealt with by resolution, be read a first, second and third time, 

passed, signed and sealed in Open Council. 

CARRIED 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT  

Resolution No. 336-2019                             Moved by Councillor Jaworski  

                                                                       Seconded by Deputy Warden 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

adjourn to the call of the chair at 9:55 pm. 

CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

______________________                                  ____________________ 

Mayor                                                                             Clerk 

Previous Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 9 of 223



````

WILLIAM STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION

Proposed Design Criteria

October 1st, 2019

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 10 of 223



MAP – WILLIAM STREET

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 11 of 223



BACKGROUND

• EVB Engineering was retained in 2019 to:

• Prepare design drawings and specifications for the reconstruction 
of William Street;

• Prepare servicing report with all design calculations;

• Prepare construction cost estimates;

• Coordinate with utility companies and senior approving 
authorities;

• Prepare tender package and provide recommendation for award; 

• Provide Contract Administration and Inspection services during 
construction period.

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 12 of 223



EXISTING CONDITIONS – R.O.W.

Right-of-Way

• Western 380m of project 
extents (yellow)
• Width: Varies +/- 21m 

• Residential properties to south 

• Raisin river to north

• Eastern 320m of project 
extents (red)
• Width:  Varies – Average 12.25m 

• Residential properties to south 
and north

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 13 of 223



EXISTING CONDITIONS – CROSS-SECTION

Existing cross-section

• 5.5m wide asphalt;

• 1.2m wide concrete sidewalk 
along eastern 320m of project 
extents; 

• Limited surface and 
subsurface drainage;

• Utility poles align roadway;

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 14 of 223



DESIGN CONSTRAINTS

• Constraints for this 
design include:

• Control of surface 
and subsurface 
stormwater.

• Existing right of way 
width.

• Proximity to Raisin 
River bank and slope.

• Proximity to existing 
utility poles.

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 15 of 223



PROPOSED CROSS SECTION –
WESTERN 380m OF PROJECT EXTENTS

• 3.5m asphalt lane 
widths;

• Semi-mountable 
curb on south 
side.

• Guiderail system 
on north side as 
required.

• Storm sewer

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 16 of 223



PROPOSED STORM SEWER 
SCHEMATIC

NEW OIL AND GRIT 
SEPERATOR

NEW STORM MANHOLES AND 
CATCHBASINS THROUGHOUT

NEW STORM SEWER 
ALONG CENTRE OF 
ROADWAY

EXISTING CROSS-CULVERTS TO 
BE REVIEWED FOR CONDITION 
AND REPLACEMENT

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 17 of 223



PROPOSED CROSS SECTION OPTION ‘A’–
EASTERN 320m OF PROJECT EXTENTS

• 3.5m asphalt lane 
widths;

• Semi-mountable 
curb on south and 
north side.

• 1.5m wide 
concrete sidewalk 
on south side.

• Utility pole 
relocation as 
required.

• Storm sewer

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 18 of 223



PROPOSED CROSS SECTION OPTION ‘B’–
EASTERN 320m OF PROJECT EXTENTS

• 3.5m asphalt lane 
widths;

• Semi-mountable 
curb on south and 
north side.

• 1.5m asphalt path 
on south side.

• Utility pole 
relocation as 
required.

• Storm sewer

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 19 of 223



PROPOSED CROSS SECTION OPTION ‘C’–
EASTERN 320m OF PROJECT EXTENTS

• 3.5m asphalt lane 
widths;

• Semi-mountable 
curb on south and 
north side.

• Utility pole 
relocation as 
required.

• Storm sewer

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 20 of 223



CLASS D COST ESTIMATE (OPTION 
A –CONCRETE SIDEWALK)

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 21 of 223



CLASS D COST ESTIMATE (OPTION 
B – ASPHALT PATH)

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 22 of 223



CLASS D COST ESTIMATE (OPTION 
C – NO SIDEWALK OR PATH)

William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)

Page 23 of 223



 
 

1|2 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No. 113-2019 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Kelli Campeau, Clerk 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. The Township’s of North and South Glengarry collectively own property known 
as the Glengarry Sports Palace (GSP).  
 

2. The Townships entered into an agreement in 2001 relating to the operation and 
yearly maintenance of the property, which effectively maintained the status quo 
of the previous agreement that had existed prior to amalgamation.  
 

3. Per the current ownership agreement, North Glengarry holds 75% ownership and 
South Glengarry holds the remaining 25% ownership of the building. 

 
4. In 2015, the Council of the Township of South Glengarry passed resolution 118-

14, initiating the steps necessary to relinquish the Township’s 25% ownership of 
the GSP. 
 

5. Since that time, the Townships of North and South Glengarry have engaged in 
ongoing negotiations to create a new arrangement for ownership and operation 
of the GSP. 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 

6. The new agreement is attached to this report as Schedule A of By-law 62-2019.  
 

7. This agreement relinquishes the Township of South Glengarry’s ownership in the 
GSP. As a result, the Township of North Glengarry will assume 100% ownership. 
 

8. The Township of South Glengarry will contribute an annual payment of $50,000 
to North Glengarry for the duration of the agreement, which terminates on June 
30, 2031. All assets and income realized, and liabilities incurred in connection 
with the GSP will fall with North Glengarry.  
 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 24 of 223



 
 

2|2 
 

9. The agreement requires that North Glengarry submit an annual report to South 
Glengarry Council on the activities of the GSP during the year and that regular 
semi-annual meetings be held with representatives from South Glengarry to 
provide updates on the GSP.  
 

10. The Township of North Glengarry authorized and signed the agreement at their 
September 23, 2019 Council Meeting.  

 
IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 

11.  Pursuant to Section 6 of the agreement, South Glengarry shall pay North 
Glengarry an annual sum of $50,000, including for the 2019 year, upon signing 
the agreement.   
 

12. As per budget discussions this amount will come from general reserves and, 
starting in 2020, will become a regularly budgeted item. 

 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 113-2019 be received and that By-law 62-2019, 
being a by-law to enter into an agreement with the Corporation of the Township of North 
Glengarry for the administration and operation of the Glengarry Sports Palace be read a 
first, second and third time, passed, signed and sealed this 7th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
 

 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 25 of 223



SG-I-19 

THE CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 
BY-LAW NUMBER 63-2019 
FOR THE YEAR 2019 
 
BEING A BY-LAW TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH GLENGARRY FOR THE 

ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATION OF THE GLENGARRY SPORTS 

PALACE. 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Act, 2001, c.25 S 5 (1) provides that the powers of 

a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its council; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, c. 25 S. 5(3) provides that the 

powers of every council are to be exercised by by-law. 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, c. 25 S. 9 provides that the 

municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person 

for the purposes of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

AND WHEREAS North and South Glengarry are parties to an agreement dated 

August 14, 2001 respecting their participation in the administration of the 

Glengarry Sports Palace, consisting of a skating arena, a community hall, two 

adjoining ball fields and a public library facility located on part of Lot one (1), 

Concession three (3), former Township of Kenyon, County of Glengarry, now 

within the limits of the municipality of North Glengarry, as shown on Part 1 Plan 

14R-653, known as PALAIS DES SPORTS GLENGARRY SPORTS PALACE 

(GSP); 

AND WHEREAS North Glengarry owns seventy-five (75%) percent of the GSP 

and South Glengarry owns twenty-five (25%) percent of the GSP; 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of South Glengarry is desirous of 

conveying the Township of South Glengarry’s twenty-five (25%) percept interest 

in the GSP to North Glengarry for a consideration of two dollars ($2.00); 

AND WHEREAS North Glengarry and South Glengarry are desirous of 

rescinding all previous agreements made between them and their predecessor 

municipalities respecting the GSP and are desirous of entering into a new 

agreement respecting the GSP; 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. THAT By-law 39-01 is hereby rescinded and that should any other 

existing by-laws, resolutions, policies or actions of the Corporation of the 

Township of South Glengarry be deemed to be inconsistent with the 

provisions on this by-law, that this by-law shall prevail. 

 

2. THAT the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized the sign the 

agreement attached hereto as Schedule A and is declared to form part of 

this by-law.  

 

3. THAT this by-law shall come into force and take effect on the date of its 

final passing.  

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 26 of 223



 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME, PASSED, SIGNED AND 

SEALED IN OPEN COUNCIL THIS 7TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2019. 

 

 

 

MAYOR:                                                        CLERK:_____________________                                           

 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 27 of 223



THIS AGREEMENT made in duplicate this        day of                , 2019. 
 
 
BETWEEN:    
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH GLENGARRY 
 

(Hereafter called "NORTH GLENGARRY"); 
 

AND: 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 
 

(Hereafter called "SOUTH GLENGARRY"); 
 

WHEREAS North Glengarry and South Glengarry are parties to an agreement dated August 14, 2001 
respecting their participation in the administration of the GSP, consisting of a skating arena, a 
community hall, two adjoining ball fields and a public library facility located on part of Lot one (1), 
Concession three (3), former Township of Kenyon, County of Glengarry, now within the limits of the 
municipality of North Glengarry, as shown on Part 1 Plan 14R-653, known as PALAIS DES SPORTS 
GLENGARRY SPORTS PALACE (“GSP”); 
 
AND WHEREAS North Glengarry owns Seventy-Five (75%) per cent of the GSP and South Glengarry owns 
Twenty-Five (25%) of the GSP; 
 
AND WHEREAS South Glengarry is desirous of conveying its Twenty-Five (25%) per cent interest in the of 
the GSP to North Glengarry for a consideration of Two Dollars ($2.00); 
 
AND WHEREAS North Glengarry and South Glengarry are desirous of rescinding all previous agreements 
made between them and their predecessor municipalities respecting the GSP and are desirous of 
entering into a new agreement (“Agreement”) respecting the GSP; 
 
NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the promises and of the mutual covenants 
and agreements and payments hereinafter provided to be made, the parties hereto respectively 
covenant and agree with each other as follows: 
 
1. This Agreement shall be effective upon execution and shall continue for Twelve and One-Half (12.5) 

years until June 30, 2031 unless terminated sooner by mutual consent of both parties. 
 

2. This Agreement sets forth and constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof. This agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements, 
negotiations, correspondence, undertakings, promises, covenants, arrangements, communications, 
representations, and warranties, whether oral or written, of any party to this agreement. 

 
3. Within sixty days (60) from the date of the last party signing this Agreement, South Glengarry will 

transfer all its right, title and interest in the GSP to North Glengarry at the expense of South 
Glengarry for a consideration of Two Dollars ($2.00). 
 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 28 of 223



[2] 
 

4. Once the GSP is transferred to North Glengarry the duties and responsibilities of North Glengarry 
shall include the following: 

 
(a) To keep the inhabitants of the Township of North Glengarry and the Township of 
South Glengarry aware at all times of the recreational opportunities which are available 
at the GSP; 
 
(b) To make such rules in its sole and unfettered discretion as it considers necessary 
relating to the management and control of the GSP; 
 
(c) To prescribe fees and fix charges for the admittance to or the use of the GSP as it 
considers advisable;  
 
(d) To let, if desirable, from year to year, the right to sell refreshments within the 
GSP on such terms and conditions it considers advisable; 
 
(e) To appoint full time or part time workers on a paid or voluntary basis and be 
responsible for assigning the duties and responsibilities of such persons; 
 
(f) To hold regular semi-annual meetings with representatives from South 
Glengarry to provide updates on the GSP; 
  
(g) To keep statistical and other records as may be required for the proper and 
efficient use of the GSP, including an adequate bookkeeping system to be kept by the 
Manager or any other person at the discretion of the committee; 
 
(h) To enter Into such contracts and/or agreements in its sole and unfettered 
discretion as it may deem necessary to promote hockey and other attractions including 
shows, exhibitions, engagements and other form of functions, enterprise, and 
entertainment as it may deem requisite for the enjoyment and convenience of the public 
at large; 
 
(i) To submit an annual report to South Glengarry council on the activities of the 
GSP during the year. 

 
5. All assets and income realized and liabilities incurred in connection with the GSP shall vest North 

Glengarry. 
 

6. Upon the signing of this agreement, South Glengarry shall pay to North Glengarry the sum of Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) representing payment for 2019. 

 
7. On the first day of January 2020 and continuing thereafter on the first day of January every year 

thereafter up to and including the first day of January 2030, South Glengarry shall pay to North 
Glengarry the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00). 

 
8. On the Thirtieth (30) day of June 2031, South Glengarry shall pay to North Glengarry the sum of 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25.000.00). Once that final payment is made this agreement shall 
be terminated.  

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 29 of 223



[3] 
 

 
9. Neither party shall have the right to assign or subcontract any part of its obligations under this 

agreement. 
 

10. If any provision of this Agreement shall be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be 
illegal, void, or unenforceable, the other provisions shall not be affected but shall remain in full force 
and effect.  

 
11. This agreement shall come into effect on the date the last of the municipalities executes the 

agreement. 
 

12. In consideration of executing this agreement, North Glengarry, on behalf of its councillors, 
employees, servants, agents, heirs, administrators, assigns and successors and on behalf of any 
party or parties who claim a right or interest through them (hereinafter referred to as the “NG 
Releasor”),  

 
a. hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges, without qualification or limitation 

South Glengarry and its councillors, directors, employees, servants, agents, heirs, 
administrators, assigns and successors and on behalf of any party or parties who claim a 
right or interest through them (hereinafter referred to as the “SG Releasees”), from all 
manner of actions, causes of action, suits, debts, dues, accounts, bonds, covenants, 
contracts, complaints, claims and demands for damages, monies, losses, indemnity, 
costs, interest and loss, or injuries howsoever arising which hereto may have been or 
may hereafter be sustained by the NG Releasor in relation to the GSP, including, but not 
limited to its operation and/or maintenance and without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, from any and all matters that were pleaded in, or could have been pleaded, 
in the action, in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice Court File No. 17-74438 (the 
“Action”); 
 

b. without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the NG Releasor declares that the intent 
of this Full and Final Release is to conclude all issues arising from the matters set forth 
above and from the Action and it is understood and agreed that this Release is intended 
to cover, and does cover, not only all known injuries, losses and damages, but also 
injuries, losses and damages not now known or anticipated but which may later develop 
or be discovered, including all the effects and consequences thereof; 

 
c. for the said consideration it is agreed and understood that the NG Releasor will not 

make any claim or take any proceedings against any other person or corporation who 
might claim, in any manner or forum, contribution or indemnity in common law or in 
equity, or under the provisions of any statute or regulation, including the Negligence Act 
and the amendments thereto and/or under any successor legislation thereto, and/or 
under the Rules of Civil Procedure, from the SG Releasees discharged by this Full and 
Final Release, in connection with the matters outlined above and in the Action; 

 
d. it is agreed and understood that if the NG Releasor commences such an action, or takes 

such proceedings, and the SG Releasees are added to such proceeding in any manner 
whatsoever, whether justified in law or not, the NG Releasor will immediately 
discontinue the proceedings and/or claims, and the NG Releasor will be liable to the SG 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 30 of 223



[4] 
 

Releasees for the legal costs incurred in any such proceeding, on a solicitor and his own 
client scale.  This Full and Final Release shall operate conclusively as an estoppel in the 
event of any claim, action, complaint or proceeding which might be brought in the 
future by the NG Releasor with respect to the matters covered by this Full and Final 
Release.  This Full and Final Release may be pleaded in the event any such claim, action, 
complaint or proceeding is brought, as a complete defence and reply, and may be relied 
upon in any proceeding to dismiss the claim, action, complaint or proceeding on a 
summary basis and no objection will be raised by the NG Releasor in any subsequent 
action that the other parties in the subsequent action were not privy to formation of 
this Release;  

 
e. for the said consideration, North Glengarry shall indemnify and save harmless South 

Glengarry in respect of all manner of actions, causes of action, suits, debts, dues, 
accounts, bonds, covenants, contracts, complaints, claims and demands for damages, 
monies, losses, indemnity, costs, interest and loss, or injuries howsoever arising which 
hereafter may be claimed against South Glengarry in relation to the GSP, the property 
and its operations, howsoever arising;  

 
f. North Glengarry hereby confirms that it will discontinue the Action, with prejudice and 

without costs. 
 
13. In consideration of executing this agreement, South Glengarry, on behalf of its councillors, 

employees, servants, agents, heirs, administrators, assigns and successors and on behalf of any 
party or parties who claim a right or interest through them (hereinafter referred to as the “SG 
Releasor”),  

 
a. hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges, without qualification or limitation 

North Glengarry and its councillors, directors, employees, servants, agents, heirs, 
administrators, assigns and successors and on behalf of any party or parties who claim a 
right or interest through them (hereinafter referred to as the “NG Releasees”), from all 
manner of actions, causes of action, suits, debts, dues, accounts, bonds, covenants, 
contracts, complaints, claims and demands for damages, monies, losses, indemnity, 
costs, interest and loss, or injuries howsoever arising which hereto may have been 
sustained by the SG Releasor in relation to the GSP, including, but not limited to its 
operation and/or maintenance and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
from any and all matters that were pleaded in, or could have been pleaded, in the 
counterclaim in the action in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice Court File No. 17-
74438 (the “Action”); 
 

b. for the said consideration it is agreed and understood that the SG Releasor will not 
make any claim or take any proceedings against any other person or corporation who 
might claim, in any manner or forum, contribution or indemnity in common law or in 
equity, or under the provisions of any statute or regulation, including the Negligence Act 
and the amendments thereto and/or under any successor legislation thereto, and/or 
under the Rules of Civil Procedure, from the NG Releasees discharged by this Full and 
Final Release, in connection with the matters outlined above and in the Action; 

 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 31 of 223



[5] 
 

c. it is agreed and understood that if the SG Releasor commences such an action, or takes 
such proceedings, and the NG Releasees are added to such proceeding in any manner 
whatsoever, whether justified in law or not, the SG Releasor will immediately 
discontinue the proceedings and/or claims, and the SG Releasor will be liable to the NG 
Releasees for the legal costs incurred in any such proceeding, on a solicitor and his own 
client scale.  This Full and Final Release shall operate conclusively as an estoppel in the 
event of any claim, action, complaint or proceeding which might be brought in the 
future by the SG Releasor with respect to the matters covered by this Full and Final 
Release.  This Full and Final Release may be pleaded in the event any such claim, action, 
complaint or proceeding is brought, as a complete defence and reply, and may be relied 
upon in any proceeding to dismiss the claim, action, complaint or proceeding on a 
summary basis and no objection will be raised by the SG Releasor in any subsequent 
action that the other parties in the subsequent action were not privy to formation of 
this Release;  

 
d. South Glengarry hereby confirms that it will discontinue the counterclaim in the Action, 

with prejudice and without costs. 
 

 
14. The releases and indemnities given in this agreement shall survive its termination or expiry and shall 

not act as a bar against either party commencing a legal proceeding to enforce its terms.  
 

15. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither party may terminate this Agreement before June 30, 2031. 
Term of Agreement and Termination. 

 
16. This agreement may be amended or modified only by a writing executed by both parties. 

 
17. This agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective heirs, legal or personal representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 

 
Signed and sealed by the Mayor and Clerk of the parties hereto.   
 

Signed this  day of   , 2019 
 

THE CORPORATI ON OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH GLENGARRY 
 
  

___________________________________ 
 

Mayor 
 
 

___________________________________ 
 

Clerk 
 

 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 32 of 223



[6] 
 

Signed this  day of   , 2019 
 
 

THE CORPORATI ON OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
  

Mayor 
 

 
________________________________ 

 
Clerk 

Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)

Page 33 of 223



 
 

1|2 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No.114-2019 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Kelli Campeau, Clerk 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Appointment of Deputy Clerk 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. In August 2019 the Township advertised a job posting for a one-year maternity 
leave position for the role of the Clerk.  
 

2. As a result, Kaylyn MacDonald has been hired to fill the position for the term of 
January 1, 2020 to February 1, 2021.  
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

3. Pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, a municipality may appoint deputy clerks 
who have all the powers and duties of the clerk under any Act.  
 

4. Our representative with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing suggested 
that the Township appoint Ms. MacDonald as Deputy Clerk, as this is a contract 
as opposed to a permanent position.  
 

5. As Deputy Clerk, Ms. MacDonald will hold all the powers of the Clerk for the 
duration of her contract.  

 
IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 

6. The impact would range from $2,000 to $3,500 in additional training and staffing 
costs. There is money in the budget to absorb these increased expenses. 

 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
Goal 3: Strengthen the effectiveness and efficiency of our organization.  
 
 
 
 

Appointment of Deputy Clerk (K. Campeau)

Page 34 of 223



 
 

2|2 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 114-2019 be received and that By-law 64-2019, 
being a by-law to appoint Kaylyn MacDonald as Deputy Clerk for the Township of South 
Glengarry be read a first, second and third time, passed, signed and sealed in Open 
Council this 7th day of October 2019.  
 
 
 

 

Appointment of Deputy Clerk (K. Campeau)

Page 35 of 223



         SG-E-10 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 

BY-LAW 64-2019 

FOR THE YEAR 2019 
 

BEING A BY-LAW TO APPOINT A DEPUTY CLERK PURSUANT TO 

SECTIONS 228 (2) OF THE MUNICIPAL ACT, 2001. 

 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Act, 2001, c.25 S 5 (1) provides that the powers of 
a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its council; 

 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, c. 25 S. 5(3) provides that the 
powers of every council are to be exercised by by-law. 
 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, Section 228(2) 

provides that a municipality may appoint a Deputy Clerk; 

 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of South Glengarry deems it 

advisable to appoint the following individual as Deputy Clerk. 

 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. THAT Kaylyn MacDonald be appointed as Deputy Clerk of the 

Corporation of the Township of South Glengarry. 

 

2. THAT this by-law will come into force and effect upon third and final 

reading.  

 
 

 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME, PASSED, SIGNED AND 

SEALED IN OPEN COUNCIL THIS 7TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAYOR:                                                    CLERK:                                _              
 

 

Appointment of Deputy Clerk (K. Campeau)

Page 36 of 223



 
 

1|2 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No. 115-2019 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Keli Campeau, Clerk 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Appointment of Lottery Licence Issuer 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. Under the Order in Council 1413-08, municipal councils may, if deemed to be in 
the best interest of the inhabitants of the municipality, issue lottery licences to 
charitable organizations. 
 

2. The Township of South Glengarry provides lottery licencing services on behalf of 
the Alcohol and Gaming Commission of Ontario in accordance with the Alcohol 
and Gaming Regulation and Public Protection Act, 1996. 
 

3. Lottery licences are required for events such as 50/50 draws, raffles, bingos and 
break-open tickets.  
 

4. Presently, the Township’s Clerk (Kelli Campeau) and GM of Corporate 
Services/Treasurer (Lachlan McDonald) are appointed Lottery Licence Officers 
for the Township of South Glengarry. 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 

5. The current Clerk will be commencing a maternity leave in 2020 and as a result, 
Kaylyn MacDonald will be appointed Deputy Clerk to act as Clerk in Ms. 
Campeau’s absence. 
 

6. As a result, it is advisable that Ms. MacDonald be appointed as a Lottery Licence 
Officer in order to continue delivering this service during Ms. Campeau’s 
absence.  

 
IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 
N/A 
 
 

Appointment of Lottery Licence Issuer (K. Campeau)

Page 37 of 223



 
 

2|2 
 

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
Goal 3: Strengthen the effectiveness and efficiency of our organization. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 115-2019 be received and that By-law 65-2019, 
being a by-law to appoint Kaylyn MacDonald as a Lottery Licence Officer for the 
Corporation of the Township of South Glengarry, be read a first, second and third time, 
passed, signed and sealed in Open Council this 7th day of October, 2019.  
 
 
 

 

Appointment of Lottery Licence Issuer (K. Campeau)

Page 38 of 223



           SG-I-18 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 

BY-LAW 65-18 

FOR THE YEAR 2018 

 

BEING A BY-LAW TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A LOTTERY 

LICENSE OFFICER FOR THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH 

GLENGARRY. 

 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Act, 2001, c.25 S 5 (1) provides that the powers of a 
municipal corporation are to be exercised by its council; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, c. 25 S. 5(3) provides that the powers 
of every council are to be exercised by by-law. 
 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act 2001, c. 25 S. 9 provides that the municipality 

has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the purposes 

of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

 

AND WHEREAS the Order in Council 1413/08 provides that municipal councils 

may, if deemed to be in the best interest of the inhabitants of the municipality, issue 

or cause to be issued a license authorizing a charitable organization to conduct and 

manage the types of lottery schemes as may be specified by the Registrar and 

approved by the Minister. 

 

AND WHEREAS the Township of South Glengarry provides Lottery Licensing 

Services for the issuance of Lottery Licenses to charitable organizations within the 

Township of South Glengarry on behalf of the Alcohol and Gaming Commission of 

Ontario in accordance with the Alcohol and Gaming Regulation and Public 

Protection Act 1996; 

 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. THAT Kaylyn MacDonald is hereby appointed as a Lottery Licensing Officer 

for the Township of South Glengarry. 

 

2. THAT Kaylyn MacDonald shall exercise all the authority, powers and rights 

and shall perform all the duties and obligations which by statute or by-law 

are, or may be, conferred or imposed upon the Lottery Licensing Officer.  

 

 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME, PASSED, SIGNED AND SEALED 

IN OPEN COUNCIL THIS 7TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2019. 

 

 

 

  _____________________________         ___________________________  

MAYOR:                                                      CLERK:                                          

Appointment of Lottery Licence Issuer (K. Campeau)

Page 39 of 223



 
 

1|2 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No. 116-2019 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Joanne Haley, GM Community Services 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. A review of job descriptions was recently completed for all positions within the 
Building Department.   
 

2. In May 2019, Council approved a new job description titled Manager of By-Law 
Enforcement and Deputy Chief Building Official.  

 
3. Upon further review, Council directed Administration to remove by-law 

enforcement duties from the current building staff to allow the building staff to 
focus on legislated and mandated responsibilities in the Ontario Building Code 
Act and Ontario Building Code. 
 

4. As a result, in August 2019 Council approved a job description for the position of 
Manager of Municipal Law Enforcement.  
 

5. This has resulted in the need to revise the Manager of By-Law Enforcement and 
Deputy Chief Building Official job description to rename the position as the 
Deputy Chief Building Official and to remove all by-law enforcement 
responsibilities and duties. 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 

6. Attached is the revised job description for the review and approval of Council. 
 

7. Due to the recent restructuring in the building department, job descriptions and 
titles have changed; however, the same number of positions exist. For the benefit 
of the public and Council, below is a table demonstrating the recent changes. 
 

 
 
 

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)

Page 40 of 223



 
 

2|2 
 

FORMER STRUCTURE NEW STRUCTURE 

• Director of Development & Chief 
Building Official 

• Director of Development & Chief 
Building Official 

• Building Official 1 • Deputy Chief Building Official 

• Manager Property Standards & 
Enforcement 

• Manager of Municipal Law 
Enforcement 

• Building Information Officer  • Building Information Officer  

 
IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 
N/A 
 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
Goal 3: Strengthen the effectiveness and efficiency of our organization 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 116-2019 be received and that the Council of the 
Township of South Glengarry approves the job description of the Deputy Chief Building 
Official. 
 
 
 
 

 

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)

Page 41 of 223



Job Description:  Deputy Chief Building Official  
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 
The Corporation of 

The  
Township of South 

Glengarry 
 

Job Description 

Position Title: 
 
Deputy Chief Building Official (DCBO) 
 

Group: 
 
Non Union 
 

Supervisor: 
 
Director of Development – Chief Building Official (CBO) 

Department: 
 
Building  
 

Prepared By: 

 

Human Resources Advisor 

 

Approved: 
 
April 2019 

 Revised:  September 2019 

Job Function: 
 
Reporting to the Director of Development - CBO, the Deputy Chief Building Official is 
responsible for assisting the Chief Building Official in all aspects of building department.  In 
the absence of the CBO, the Deputy Chief Building Official supervises and provides direction 
to staff respecting the issuance of building permits ensuring compliance with the Ontario 
Building Code and other applicable laws.   

 

Skills and Qualifications: 
 
1. Successful completion of the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Examination 

Program including CBO Legal Process, House, Small Buildings, HVAC – House,  
Building Structural, Plumbing House, Plumbing All Buildings, Large Buildings and 
Building Services. 

2. Proficient knowledge of regulatory bylaws legislation, policies, procedures and rules, 
investigation and evidence gathering techniques, training techniques and methods, 

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)

Page 42 of 223



Job Description:  Deputy Chief Building Official  
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

court processes and procedures; emergency response techniques and public 
education and awareness programs concerning By-Law.  

3. Good working knowledge of the Ontario Building Code Act and Regulations,  
familiarity with building materials, construction and procedures, ability to read and 
understand plans, blueprints and building construction drawing; 

4. Demonstrated leadership skills; working knowledge of the Occupational Health and 
Safety Act, effective written communications skills including the ability to prepare 
reports; effective public relations and public speaking skills, research and program 
development skills, time and stress management skills, ability to deal effectively with 
people in difficult situations, decision making and negotiations skills and effective 
verbal and listening communications skills. 

5. Minimum of five (5) years combined experience in a construction environment and 
a municipal building inspection environment. 

6. Maintain a valid Ontario Class G Drivers’ License and clean drivers abstract. 

Direction Received/Independent Action: 
  
7. Ensures duties are performed with the expressed aim of protecting the Corporation 

from liability claims. 

8. Performance is monitored by the Director of Development – CBO through the annual 
performance appraisal process. 

Working Relationships: 

Routine: 

9. Director of Development - CBO: 

Direct reporting relationship. 

 

10. General Manager- Community Services: 
 
Reporting relationship. 

11. Building Information Officer    

Manager 

 

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)

Page 43 of 223



Job Description:  Deputy Chief Building Official  
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

12. General Public including residents and ratepayers:        
 

To respond to general inquiries and provide public education and awareness and 
promote safety. Receives and examines building permit applications to ensure 
submission of proper drawings, specifications and other information necessary for the 
issuance of a building permit.  
 

13. Management Team: 
 
To educate and enforce municipal bylaws in order to ensure a safe environment for 
community members. Exchanges information with all departments inside the 
Corporation. 

Non-Routine Contacts: 
 

14. Mayor/Council and members of Local Boards: 
 
To update and exchange information as requested in the areas of Municipal By-
Law. 

15. Legal Counsel:  
 
Gathers evidence in an appropriate and legal manner; prepares reports; provides 
evidence and testimony in court proceedings. 
 

Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
Building Inspection 
 
16. Maintain detailed records of incidences 
 
17. Ensures that all development or improvements of property within the Township of 

South Glengarry are in compliance with the Ontario Building Code, the 
Township’s current Comprehensive Zoning By-Law and Official Plan and other 
applicable legislation. 

 
18. Issues building permits in accordance with the Ontario Building Code in the 

absence of the CBO. 
 

19. Conducts Plans review of building permit applications. 
 

20. Perform the statutory duties and functions of an inspector pursuant to the 
Building Code Act, the Ontario Building Code and relevant by-laws. 

 
21. Maintains records of permits issued, inspection reports, deficiency lists, orders 

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)

Page 44 of 223



Job Description:  Deputy Chief Building Official  
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

issued and occupancy permits for all properties in the Township computer 
software system. 

 
22. Attends Committee of Adjustment meetings as a staff resource person as 

required. 
 
23. Acts as CBO when CBO is absent.  

 
24. Respond to inquiries from the public and contractors and provide guidance as 

needed. 

Impact of Errors: 

25. Many components of this position are subject to Acts, Regulations, By-Laws and 
Municipal and Provincial policies.  Errors result in deterioration affecting organizational 
image or community relations. 

 
26. Errors may lead to charges being laid against the Corporation, General Manager, 

Administration, Council and personally resulting in possible fines or imprisonment 
 

Physical and Sensory Demands: 

27. Muscular and sensory strain, combined with sensory exertion, is required for 
moderate periods while working at a personal computer station. 

28. Daily routine involves physically dangerous and confrontational situations; exposure 
to a variety of environmental and weather conditions while outside of the office. 

29. Environment may be noisy and busy making it difficult for the Officer to concentrate. 

30. Ability to drive a municipal vehicle, walk, sit, stand, climb, clamber rough terrain, 
Climb ladders and crawl. 

Mental Demands: 

31. The nature and variety of duties place this position in a high public profile.  Stress is 
a factor due to close interaction with the public regarding conflicts concerning 
inspections and by-law enforcement.   

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)

Page 45 of 223



Job Description:  Deputy Chief Building Official  
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Working Conditions: 
 
Hours of Work: 

32. Required to work a 7 hour day during normal business hours. Additional hours are 
required on a regular basis in excess of the regular workday related primarily to 
afterhours Council, Committee of the Whole and Public meetings and work backlog. 

33. Overtime is compensated as per Township Policy. 

Work Environment: 

34. Spends 20% to 30% of the average work year in a private office within a single office 
building; may be interrupted frequently to meet the needs and requests of residents. 
Remaining work day is spent outside, local travel and on-sites to assess situations 
related to daily job functions. 
 

Hazards: 

35. Usual hazards consist of slips, trips and falls or strains, heights and overexertion 
due to lifting.  

36. Repetitive motion injuries from keyboard activities are also a hazard.   
37. Exposed to adverse weather conditions. 
38. Exposed to abusive language and threatening behaviour of public in emotionally 

charged situations. 
39. Encounters hazardous conditions within unsafe buildings. 

 

 

Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)

Page 46 of 223



 
 

1|3 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No. 117-2019 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Dillen Seguin,  

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard 
Endorsement 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. The Township developed an Operation Plan Manual to meet the requirements of 
the Drinking Water Licensing Program under the Safe Drinking Water Act. The 
plan was accepted by the Canadian General Standards Board and the Ministry of 
Environment.  
 

2. The Township received accreditation from the Canadian General Standards 
Board in October 2010.  

 
3. The Township has attained a 100% compliance rating in the yearly inspection of 

the plants by the Ministry of Environment (MOE). This accomplishment 
demonstrates the commitment and dedication to the provision of safe drinking 
water to the residents of the Township.  
 

4. The Township has received its Drinking Water Works Permit (Permit) and 
Municipal Drinking Water Licence (Licence) for the Glen Walter Drinking Water 
System, the Lancaster Drinking Water System and the Redwood Estates 
Drinking Water System. These permits and licences will be renewed in 2020.  
 

5. The Township’s Operational Plan for the Drinking Water Systems meets the 
requirements of the Director’s Directions – Minimum Requirements for 
Operational Plans made under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 and has been 
accepted. 
 

6. The foundation of the Quality Management System is the Drinking Water Quality 
Management System Policy adopted by Council in 2010. The policy states that 
the Township is committed to: 
 

• Providing a safe and reliable supply of drinking water to all of its 
customers; 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 47 of 223



 
 

2|3 
 

• Meeting or exceeding the requirements of all legislation and regulations 
applicable to drinking water; and, 

• Maintaining and continually improving its Quality Management System. 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

7. Annual Internal Audits of the Operation Plan are completed by the General 
Manager of Infrastructure Services. A copy of the September 12, 2019 Internal 
Audit/Management Review is attached.  
 

8. An offsite Audit by SAI Global has been completed for the Drinking Water Quality 
Management System Operation Plan Manual. No non-conformities were noted in 
the External Audit Report.  
 

9. A Management Review was completed by the General Manager of Infrastructure 
Services and the Director of Water/Waste Water Operations. The Quality 
Management System Operation Plan Manual has been revised to reflect 
changes recommended from the Management review of the document.  
 

10. The Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002, includes a statutory standard of care for 
individuals who have oversight responsibilities for municipal drinking water 
systems. The Standard of Care has been in force since December 31, 2012.  
 

11. The last copy of the Operation Plan was received by Council on April 13, 2015 
and endorsed by the Mayor, Clerk and the operating Authority Representatives.  
 

12. A copy of the revised Drinking Water Quality Management System Operation 
Plan Manual has been printed for each member of Council. Previous 
versions/copies of the document held by members of Council should be returned 
to Administration for destruction. 
 

13. The revised document is before Council this evening to be received for review. At 
the October 22, 2019 Council Meeting a report will be included on the agenda 
seeking Council’s endorsement of the document, reaffirming commitment to the 
Operation Plan.  

 
IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 
N/A 
 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
Values: Accountability, Trust  
 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 48 of 223



 
 

3|3 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 117-2019 be received and that the Council of the 
Township of South Glengarry receive the Drinking Water Quality Management System 
Operation Manual Version 7, revised September 12, 2019.  
 
 
 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 49 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 50 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 51 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 52 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 53 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 54 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 55 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 56 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 57 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 58 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 59 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 60 of 223



Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 61 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry 
Drinking Water Quality Management System 

 

Document Title: Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual  

QMS Reference: QMS SYS-OP PLAN 

Revision Number: V7 

Revision Date: September 12, 2019 

QMS 
Representative: 

Director of Water/Wastewater 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 Page 1 of 51 

 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management System 

Operational Plan Manual 
  

 
  

 

 

 

   

 

 The Township of South Glengarry 
6 Oak Street, Lancaster, ON  K0C 1N0 

 
www.southglengarry.com 

This Operational Plan Manual applies to the following municipal systems: 

• The Glen Walter Drinking Water System, 

• The Lancaster Drinking Water System, and 

• The Redwood Estates Drinking Water System. 
 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 62 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 2 of 51 

 

Table of Contents 
 
1. Quality Management System 3 

2. QMS System Policy 4 

3. Commitment and Endorsement 5 

4. QMS Representative 6 

5. Document and Records Control 8 

6. Drinking Water System 9 

7. Risk Assessment 17 

8. Risk Assessment Outcomes 18 

9. Organizational Structure, Roles, Responsibilities and Authorities 27 

10. Competencies 32 

11. Personnel Coverage 35 

12. Communications 36 

13. Essential Supplies and Services 37 

14. Review and Provision of Infrastructure 38 

15. Infrastructure Maintenance, Rehabilitation and Renewal 39 

16. Sampling, Testing and Monitoring 45 

17. Measurement and Recording Equipment Calibration and Maintenance 46 

18. Emergency Management 47 

19. Internal Audits 48 

20. Management Review 49 

21. Continual Improvement 50 

 
List of Appendices 51 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 63 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 3 of 51 

 

1. Quality Management System 

The Township of South Glengarry has developed this QMS Operational Plan Manual in response 
to the requirements of the Municipal Drinking Water Licensing Program under the Safe Drinking 
Water Act. 

This manual, along with the procedures and other documents to which it refers, forms the basis 
of South Glengarry’s Drinking Water Quality Management System (QMS). The scope of the 
operations covered by this Plan includes the following operational subsystems: 

1. The Glen Walter Drinking Water System,  
2. The Lancaster Drinking Water System, and 
3. The Redwood Estates Drinking Water System. 

Even though the facilities listed above are distinct operational subsystems as defined by the 
DWQMS, the Township of South Glengarry has included these facilities in a single Plan because 
they share common: 

o Top Management, 
o Operations Management,  
o Operations Staff, and 
o Ownership.  

Where appropriate, this Operational Plan and its associated procedures make explicitly clear 
those areas where facility-specific information is being provided. 

 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 64 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 4 of 51 

 

2. QMS System Policy 

The following policy is recognized by the Township of South Glengarry as being an important 
foundational element of its Quality Management System. It will be communicated to the Owner 
(represented by the Mayor and Council of South Glengarry), operating authority personnel, 
goods and services providers and the public according to the QMS Communications Procedure 
(QMS SYS-P9) found in the Appendices of this document. 
 

Drinking Water Quality Management System Policy 

The Township of South Glengarry is committed to: 

• Providing a safe and reliable supply of drinking water to all of its customers, 

• Meeting or exceeding the requirements of all legislation and regulations applicable to 
drinking water, and 

• Maintaining and continually improving its Quality Management System. 

 

 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 65 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 5 of 51 

 

3. Commitment and Endorsement 

This Operational Plan is endorsed by the system Owner and Operating Authority, the Township 
of South Glengarry. 
 
The Mayor and Councilors of South Glengarry, representing the Owner, acknowledge their 
responsibility to ensure the provision of all necessary resources for the maintenance of: 
 

• The waterworks infrastructure, and  

• The Quality Management System. 
 
Top Management of the Operating Authority commits to: 
 

• Ensure a Quality Management System is in place that meets the requirements of 
the Drinking Water Quality Management Standard, 

• Ensure that the Operating Authority is aware of all applicable legislative and 
regulatory requirements, 

• Effectively communicate the Quality Management System according to the 
communications procedure in this Operational Plan, and 

• Determine, obtain or provide the resources needed to maintain and continually 
improve the Quality Management System. 

 
The DWQMS Representative, appointed by Top Management of the Operating Authority, 
understands and acknowledges the responsibilities inherent to the role, and commits to: 
 

• Administer the Quality Management System by ensuring that processes and 
procedures needed for the Quality Management System are established and 
maintained, 

• Report to Top Management on the performance of the Quality Management 
System and any need for improvement, 

• Ensure that current versions of documents required by the Quality Management 
System are being used at all times, 

• Ensure that personnel are aware of all applicable legislative and regulatory 
requirements that pertain to their duties for the operation of the subject 
system, and 

• Promote awareness of the Quality Management System throughout the 
Operating Authority. 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 66 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 6 of 51 

 

 

Signed, on behalf of the Owner 
 

 

 

  

 Date  Mayor  
 
 
 
 

 Date  Clerk  
 
 
 

  

Signed, on behalf of the Operating Authority  
 

   
 

 Date  General Manager - Infrastructure Services 
(QMS Top Management) 

 Date  Director of Water/Wastewater Operations 
(QMS Representative) 
 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 67 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 7 of 51 

 

4. QMS Representative 

Top Management of the Township of South Glengarry has appointed and authorized its Director 
of Water/Wastewater Operations, designate, as QMS Representative. 

In addition to the commitment made in Element 3, Commitment and Endorsement, and the 
responsibilities detailed in Element 9, Organizational Structure, Roles, Responsibilities and 
Authorities, the Director of Water/Wastewater Operations acknowledges that the role of QMS 
Representative requires he/she to: 

o Be familiar with the drinking-water system of the Township of South Glengarry, 
o Have knowledge of best practices for drinking-water systems, 
o Have a thorough understanding of the DWQMS, 
o Demonstrate his understanding of the importance of management commitment, 
o Be familiar with audit principles and what is needed to demonstrate that DWQMS 

requirements have been met to an auditor, 
o Be familiar with applicable legislative and regulatory requirements, and 
o Understand the importance of developing and maintaining good, open 

communication with Top Management. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 68 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 8 of 51 

 

5. Document and Records Control 

The Township of South Glengarry recognizes effective document and records control as being a 
key element in the successful implementation and maintenance of its drinking water quality 
management system. With this in mind, comprehensive procedures for control of both 
documents (QMS SYS-P1) and records (QMS SYS-P2) have been developed and are included in 
the Appendices of this Plan.  

The acknowledged benefits of the implementation of these procedures include: 

o The integrity of the information contained in the Operational Plan is ensured. 
o Training of new personnel is facilitated. 
o Procedures are consistent in content, format, and currency, and are more likely to be 

correctly followed. 
o The most up-to-date versions of documents are easily retrievable by the people who 

need them. 
o Conformance audits and compliance inspections are facilitated. 
o Due diligence is demonstrated. 
o Owner and consumer confidence is promoted. 
o Internal and external communications are facilitated. 
o Decision making is made more focused and consistent. 

Over time, the QMS Operational Plan and its associated procedures will change. Recognizing 
this, the QMS Representative will ensure that training of existing personnel and new hires 
includes these fundamental instructions to staff with respect to document control: 

o Documents can be changed (by following the appropriate process) but records 
cannot, 

o Always check that the version of the document you are using is the most current, 
and 

o Always communicate changes that affect your drinking water system to the QMS 
Representative so that timely updates to the QMS can be made. 

Document: includes a sound recording, video tape, film, photograph, chart, graph, map, plan, 
survey, book of account, and information recorded or stored by means of any device.  

Record: a document stating results achieved or providing proof of activities performed.  

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 69 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 9 of 51 

 

6. Drinking Water System 

As introduced earlier in this Operational Plan, the portfolio of drinking water assets owned and 
operated by the Township of South Glengarry and applicable under the Municipal Drinking 
Water Licensing Program includes three distinct operational subsystems: 

1. The Glen Walter Drinking Water System,  
2. The Lancaster Drinking Water System, and 
3. The Redwood Estates Drinking Water System. 

6.1 The Glen Walter Drinking Water System  

  
System description:   

Surface water filtered and conventionally 
treated 

Capacity:  995 m3/day 

Service area:    Glen Walter, ON 

Service population:   1,080 

Raw water source:  St. Lawrence River 

Disinfection method: Liquid Chlorine 

Director of Water/ 
Wastewater Operations: 

Designate 

  
6.1.1 System Description 

The Township Of South Glengarry Glen Walter Water Treatment Plant is 
located approximately two kilometres east of Cornwall along County Road 2. 
The water plant is a surface water treatment facility serving the community of 
Glen Walter. It has a rated capacity of 995 cubic meters of water per day for a 
design population of 1,080 people. 

Raw water is consumed through a 300 millimeter intake pipe and intake crib 
approximately 390 meters off shore into the St. Lawrence River at a depth of 
approximately 12 meters. The water plant consist of two low lift pumps rated 
at 11.52 liters per second, one flocculation tank, two rapid sand filters, two 
carbon contactors, three compartment clear well reservoir, one backwash 
pump and two high lift pumps rated at 16.44 liters per second together with 
all associated piping, electrical and mechanical equipment, control and alarm 
systems all housed in a common building. 

6.1.2 Owner and Operating Authority 

o Owner: The Township of South Glengarry. 
o Operating Authority: The Township of South Glengarry. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 70 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 10 of 51 

 

6.1.3 Description of Water Source 

Raw Water Characteristics (2018 data) 

 Temperature °C pH Turbidity (NTU) 

Average 8.9 7.93 0.84 

Normal Range 1.43-22.47 7.74-8.03 0.29-0.97 

The raw water source is the St. Lawrence River. Raw water data demonstrates 
that the quality of the water is good and also stable. Temperature is the 
parameter that varies most widely (and predictably) and this impacts the CT 
of the treatment facility. Beyond that, there are no consistent and predictable 
operational challenges presented by the raw water. 

6.1.4 Treatment Process 

Raw water is pumped from the low lift pumping chamber, which is pre-
chlorinated. A liquid coagulant is introduced into an in line flash mixer, then 
flows under pressure into a flocculation tank. When the coagulation 
flocculation process is complete, the water flows through rapid sand filters in 
parallel, and then through the carbon contactor series which removes any 
taste and odour in the drinking water.  

Chlorine is added after the carbon contactors for post disinfection. The 
chlorinated (potable) water enters the three compartment storage reservoir 
and is then pumped to the distribution system via high lift pumps. 

6.1.5 Process Flow Chart 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 71 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 11 of 51 

 

6.1.6 Distribution System Schematic 

 

6.2 The Lancaster Drinking Water System 

  

System description:   
Surface water conventionally treated, with 
elevated storage tank 

Capacity:  1,440 m3 per day 

Service area:    Lancaster, ON 

Service population:   1,218 

Raw water source:  Lake St. Francis 

Disinfection method: Sodium Hypochlorite 

Director of Water/ 
Wastewater Operations: 

Designate 

  
6.2.1 System Description 

The Township Of South Glengarry, Lancaster Water Treatment Plant is located 
at 20523 Old Montreal Road in South Lancaster. The water treatment plant is 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 72 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 12 of 51 

 

a surface water treatment facility serving the village of Lancaster and the 
Hamlet of South Lancaster. It has a rated capacity of 1,440 cubic meters of 
water per day for a design population of 1,218 people. 

Raw water is consumed through a 450 mm intake pipe and wooden intake 
crib off the shore of Lake St. Francis at a depth of approximately 12 metres. 
The plant consist of three low lift pumps rated at 8.33 l/s one dual media 
anthracite sand gravity filter, one gravity granular activated carbon filter, 
three high lift pumps (two rated at 15.9 l/s and the third at 6.3 l/s) and two 
backwash pumps together with all associated piping, electrical equipment, 
controls and alarm systems all housed in a common building. 

6.2.2 Owner and Operating Authority 

o Owner: The Township of South Glengarry. 
o Operating Authority: The Township of South Glengarry. 

6.2.3 Description of Water Source 

Raw Water Characteristics (2018 data) 

 Temperature °C pH Colour Turbidity (NTU) 

Average 10.8 8.3 0 0.47 

Normal Range 2-21 7.23-8.22 0.33-1 0.2-.56 

As with the Glen Walter Treatment Plant, the Lancaster Facility also draws its 
water from the St. Lawrence River. Also like Glen Walter, the seasonal swings 
in temperature are the only predictable challenges relating to the raw water 
supply. 

6.2.4 Treatment Process 

Raw water is pumped from the low lift chamber, which is pre chlorinated. A 
liquid coagulant is introduced into an in line flash mixer and then process 
water flows to two sets of coagulant/flocculators; clarifiers and filters each 
rated at 720 cubic meters per day.  

The filtered water is then post chlorinated before it enters the twin celled 
reservoir. The treated (potable) water is pumped to the distribution system 
and also feeds an elevated storage tank located on North Beech Street. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 73 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 13 of 51 

 

6.2.5 Distribution System Schematic 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 74 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 14 of 51 

 

6.2.6 Process Flow Chart 

 

 

6.3 The Redwood Estates Drinking Water System 

  

System description:   
Ground water filtered and treated with liquid 
chlorine 

Capacity:  151 m3 per day 

Service area:    Redwood Estates – east of Lancaster, ON 

Service population:   140 

Raw water source:  Ground water 

Disinfection method: Sodium Hypochlorite 

Director of Water/ 
Wastewater Operations: 

Designate 

  
6.3.1 System Description 

The Township Of South Glengarry, Redwood Estates Water Treatment Facility 
is located approximately 5 kilometres east of the Village of Lancaster. The 
water treatment plant is a ground water system serving the Redwood Estates 
subdivision. It has a rated capacity of 151 m3/day for a design population of 
140 people. 

Raw water is drawn from a single well located within the pump house with a 
submersible pump capable of delivering 118 l/min. The water treatment plant 

Air Blower 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 75 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 15 of 51 

 

consist of two Manganese greensand pressure filters, two hydro-pneumatic 
tanks, two high lift pumps, one booster pump and one backwash pump. All 
pumps have a rated capacity of 303 l/min and together with all associated 
piping, electrical equipment, controls and alarm systems are all housed in a 
common building. 

6.3.2 Owner and Operating Authority 

o Owner: The Township of South Glengarry. 
o Operating Authority: The Township of South Glengarry. 

6.3.3 Description of Water Source 

Raw Water Characteristics (2018 data) 

 Temperature °C pH Colour Turbidity (NTU) 

Average 9.5 7.58 0 0.71 

Normal Range 8-9.75 7.5-7.73 0.07-0.5 0.31-1.02 

The quality and quantity of water from the well that supplies the Redwood 
Estates Water Treatment Facility is good and stable. Agricultural land in the 
vicinity is the only predictable threat relating to source water, as the naturally 
variable drinking water parameters are quite steady throughout the year.  

6.3.4 Treatment Process 

Raw water is drawn from the single well where Sodium Hypochlorite is 
introduced and flash mixed for disinfection. Following the disinfection period 
water then flows through the Greensand filters removing all other impurities. 
Water then flows to a 25 cubic meter underground storage reservoir to be 
pumped to the distribution system. 

6.3.5 Process Flow Chart 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 76 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 16 of 51 

 

6.3.6 Distribution System Schematic 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 77 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 17 of 51 

 

7. Risk Assessment 

The Township of South Glengarry recognizes that one of the key purposes of the QMS standard 
is to encourage system operators to identify, assess, manage and communicate the risks 
inherent to drinking water systems. In keeping with this purpose and its requirements, the 
Township of South Glengarry has developed a QMS Risk Assessment Procedure (QMS SYS-P8) 
and included it in the Appendices of this Operational Plan. The procedure provides a means for 
consistently assessing risk, and presents an opportunity for management to focus its drinking 
water resources more effectively based on the results of the Risk Assessment process. 

The outcomes of the most recent Risk Assessment process are discussed and summarized in 
Element 8 of this document. 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 78 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 18 of 51 

 

8. Risk Assessment Outcomes 

Using the QMS Risk Assessment Procedure (QMS SYS-P8), the Township of South Glengarry’s 
drinking water facilities have been evaluated to identify and quantify potential risks to drinking 
water quality. 

As described in the procedure, complete risk assessments are conducted separately for each 
individual subsystem. What appears in this section of the Operational Plan are the risk 
assessment outcomes summarized by drinking water system. Again, the systems are: 

1. The Glen Walter Drinking Water System,  
2. The Lancaster Drinking Water System, and 
3. The Redwood Estates Drinking Water System. 

The Drinking Water Quality Management Standard (DWQMS) requires that the following 
outcomes of the risk assessment be documented: 

o Potential hazardous events and associated hazards, 
o Assessed risks associated with the occurrence of hazardous events, 
o A ranking of the hazardous events that have been identified, 
o The identified control measures to address the potential hazards and hazardous 

events, 
o The identified critical control points and their respective critical control limits, 
o Procedures and/or processes to monitor the critical control limits, 
o Procedures to respond to deviations from the critical control limits, and 
o Procedures for reporting and recording deviations from the critical control limits. 

For ease of reading and to facilitate simpler updating of this document, each operational 
subsystem’s comprehensive risk assessment outcomes (completed QMS SYS-F4 forms) are 
included in the Appendices of this document, as are the relevant procedures relating to critical 
control points (CCPs) and limits. Tables of ranked hazards and a list of identified CCPs are 
included in this section of the Operational Plan, summarized by subsystem. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 79 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 19 of 51 

 

8.1 The Glen Walter Drinking Water System 

8.1.1 Ranked Hazards Table (presented in declining order of risk) 

Process 
Step 

Hazard/Hazardous 
Event 

Result 

D
e

te
ct

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

To
ta

l 

C
C

P
? 

Distribution Cross connection Possible contamination 5 5 5 15 No 

Distribution Backflow Possible contamination 5 5 4 14 No 

Raw Water Contamination/Chemical spill Contamination of raw water supply 5 5 2 12 No 

Clearwell Reservoir contamination Contamination of treated water 5 5 1 11 No 

System Terrorism 
Possible contamination or loss of 
potable water 

5 5 1 11 No 

Distribution 
Sustained pressure loss (water 
main break) 

Loss of pressure, possible 
contamination 

1 5 2 8 No 

Primary 
Chlorination 

Chlorine feed system failure 
Loss of disinfection,  
loss of ct value 

1 5 1 7 Yes 

Primary 
Chlorination 

General mechanical failures: 
chlorine failure, piping water 
supply 

Loss of disinfection 1 5 1 7 No 

Entire 
System 

Power failure 
Total loss of treated water (if generator 
is not functional) 

1 5 1 7 No 

Entire 
System 

Extreme weather events Damaged equipment  1 5 1 7 No 

System Vandalism 
Possible contamination or loss of 
potable water 

1 5 1 7 No 

System Manpower shortage Loss of treatment 1 5 1 7 No 

Distribution Loss of chlorine residual Possible loss of potable water 1 5 1 7 Yes 

Raw Water Water supply shortfall Loss of raw water 1 5 1 7 No 

Filtration - 
GAC 

Filter clogging (taste and 
odour) 

Filter clogging 4 1 1 6 No 

Backwash Pump failure Filter blockage 1 2 2 5 No 

Filtration Filter vessel failure Loss of process water 3 1 1 5 No 

High Lift Chlorine Analyzer failure 
Loss of potable water (distribution of 
possibly un-chlorinated water) 

1 2 1 4 No 

Filtration Piping failure  Loss of process water 2 1 1 4 No 

Entire 
System 

Long term impacts of climate 
change 

Loss of raw water supply 1 2 1 4 No 

Raw Water 

Screen plugging, raw water 
intake line crushed, intake 
plugged or broken, zebra 
mussel build-up 

Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 80 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 20 of 51 

 

Process 
Step 

Hazard/Hazardous 
Event 

Result 

D
e

te
ct

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

To
ta

l 

C
C

P
? 

Raw Water WTP screens plugging Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Raw Water Algal Blooms Filter Clogging 1 1 1 3 No 

Raw Water 
Sudden changes to raw water 
characteristics 

Treatment deficiency 1 1 1 3 No 

Low Lift Pump failure Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Low Lift PLC failure Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Valve or actuator failure Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration PLC failure Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Coagulant pump failure Loss of coagulation 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Filter media loss High turbidity 1 1 1 3 Yes 

Backwash PLC failures Failure to backwash 1 1 1 3 No 

Backwash Valve actuator failure 
Fail to backwash, filter plugging, high 
turbidity 

1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift Pump failure Loss of potable water 1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift 
Pressure regulating valve 
failure 

System pressure loss 1 1 1 3 No 

Entire 
System 

Sustained extreme 
temperatures 

Damaged equipment 1 1 1 3 No 

Control 
Systems 

Loss of PLC Filtration system shut down 1 1 1 3 No 

 

8.1.2 Critical Control Points (CCPs) 

The critical threshold was set at “7”. In this case, a number of hazards 
identified whose total risk met or exceeded the threshold were contingency 
situations and offered little operator opportunity to monitor, control or 
mitigate the hazard in real time. They are discussed in the following section 
under “Exclusions”. 

Two points exceeded the risk threshold, but offered operators an opportunity 
to monitor, control or mitigate the hazard: 

o Primary Chlorination (chlorine feed system failure), and 
o Distribution (loss of chlorine residual). 

The procedures that address how these points are monitored and controlled 
are included with the Appendices of this Plan as the QMS Primary 
Chlorination CCP Procedure (QMS OP-P1), and the QMS Distribution Systems 
Chlorine Residual CCP Procedure (QMS OP-P3). 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 81 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 21 of 51 

 

8.1.3 Rationale for Inclusion/Exclusion of CCPs 

Exclusions 

Several hazards/hazardous events exceeded the risk threshold, but the 
process steps to which they belong were not deemed to be CCPs: 

o Cross Connection (Distribution), 
o Contamination (Raw Water), 
o Reservoir Contamination (Clear Well),  
o Terrorism (System), 
o Break in Distribution (Distribution), 
o General Mechanical Failure (Primary Chlorination), 
o Power Failure (Entire System), 
o Vandalism (System), 
o Manpower Shortage (System), and 
o Fire (Entire System). 

These events were excluded from consideration as critical control points as 
no effective and timely controls are in place to prevent or mitigate them. As 
such, they have been classified as emergency situations, and included for 
discussion in the QMS Emergency Management Procedure (QMS SYS-P10). 

Inclusions 

Filtered Water Turbidity was included for discussion as a critical control point 
as it meets the MOECP’s requirements for a minimum CCP. The procedure 
that addresses how turbidity is monitored and controlled is included with the 
Appendices of this Plan as the QMS Filtered Water Turbidity CCP Procedure 
(QMS OP-P2). 

8.2 The Lancaster Drinking Water System 

8.2.1 Ranked Hazards Table (presented in declining order of risk) 

Process 
Step 

Hazard/Hazardous Event Result 

D
e

te
ct

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

To
ta

l 

C
C

P
? 

Distribution Cross connection Possible contamination 5 5 5 15 No 

Distribution Backflow Possible contamination 5 5 4 14 No 

Raw Water Contamination/Chemical spill Contamination of raw water supply 5 5 2 12 No 

Clearwell Reservoir contamination 
Contamination of treated water, loss 
of potable water 

5 5 1 11 No 

System Terrorism 
Possible contamination or loss of 
potable water 

5 5 1 11 No 

Water 
Tower 

Possible contamination from birds, 
animals, or vandalism 

Possible contamination 5 5 1 11 No 

Distribution Sustained pressure loss (water main Loss of pressure, possible 1 5 3 9 No 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 82 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 22 of 51 

 

Process 
Step 

Hazard/Hazardous Event Result 

D
e

te
ct

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

To
ta

l 

C
C

P
? 

break) contamination 

Primary Cl2. Chlorine feed system failure 
Loss of disinfection,  
loss of ct value 

2 5 2 9 Yes 

High Lift Pressure regulating valve failure 
System pressure loss, if Tower out of 
service 

1 5 1 7 No 

Raw Water Water supply shortfall Loss of water supply 1 5 1 7 No 

Entire 
System 

Fire Loss of treated water 1 5 1 7 No 

Entire 
System 

Extreme weather events Damaged equipment 1 5 1 7 No 

System Vandalism 
Possible contamination or loss of 
potable water 

1 5 1 7 No 

System Manpower shortage Loss of treatment 1 5 1 7 No 

Distribution Loss of chlorine residual Possible loss of potable water 1 5 1 7 Yes 

Water 
Tower 

Water line break Loss of treated water 1 5 1 7 No 

Water 
Tower 

Structural fault 
Loss of water pressure and ability to 
fight fires 

1 5 1 7 No 

Entire 
System 

Power failure 
Loss of transmission of treated 
water and ability to process water 

1 3 2 6 No 

Filtration Filter vessel failure Loss of process water 3 1 1 5 No 

Entire 
System 

Long term impacts of climate 
change 

Loss of raw water supply 1 2 1 4 No 

Raw Water 

Screen plugging, raw water intake 
line crushed, intake plugged or 
broken, zebra mussel chlorination 
system failure 

Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Raw Water Algal blooms Filter clogging 1 1 1 3 No 

Raw Water 
Sudden changes to raw water 
characteristics 

Treatment deficiency 1 1 1 3 No 

Raw Water WTP screens plugging Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Low Lift Pump failure Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Low Lift PLC failure Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Piping failure  Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Valve or actuator failure Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 83 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 23 of 51 

 

Process 
Step 

Hazard/Hazardous Event Result 

D
e

te
ct

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

To
ta

l 

C
C

P
? 

Filtration PLC failure Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Coagulant pump or piping failure Loss of coagulation 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Flocculator failure Loss of proper mixing 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Filter media loss High turbidity 1 1 1 3 Yes 

Filtration 
Filter clogging (taste and odour 
process step) or filter out of service 

Filter clogging 1 1 1 3 No 

Backwash Pump failure Filter clogging or blockage 1 1 1 3 No 

Backwash PLC failures Failure to backwash 1 1 1 3 No 

Backwash Valve actuator failure 
Fail to backwash, filter plugging, high 
turbidity 

1 1 1 3 No 

Primary 
Chlorination 

Pump failure Loss of disinfection 1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift Pump failure Loss of potable water 1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift Chlorine Analyzer failure 
Possible loss of potable water 
(distribution of possibly 
unchlorinated water) 

1 1 1 3 No 

Entire 
System 

Sustained extreme temperatures Damaged equipment 1 1 1 3 No 

Control 
Systems 

Loss of PLC Loss of WTP abilities 1 1 1 3 No 

Control 
Systems 

Loss of SCADA Loss of filtration process 1 1 1 3 No 

 

8.2.2 Critical Control Points (CCPs) 

The critical threshold was set at “7”. In this case, a number of hazards 
identified whose total risk met or exceeded the threshold were contingency 
situations and offered little operator opportunity to monitor, control or 
mitigate the hazard in real time. They are discussed in the following section 
under “Exclusions”. 

Two points exceeded the risk threshold, but offered operators an opportunity 
to monitor, control or mitigate the hazard: 

o Primary Chlorination (chlorine feed system failure), and 
o Distribution (loss of chlorine residual). 

The procedures that address how these points are monitored and controlled 
are included with the Appendices of this Plan as the QMS Primary 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 84 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 24 of 51 

 

Chlorination CCP Procedure (QMS OP-P1), and the QMS Distribution Systems 
Chlorine Residual CCP Procedure (QMS OP-P3). 

8.2.3 Rationale for Inclusion/Exclusion of CCPs 

Exclusions 

Several hazards/hazardous events exceeded the risk threshold, but the 
process steps to which they belong were not deemed to be a CCPs: 

o Cross Connection (Distribution), 
o Contamination (Raw Water), 
o Reservoir Contamination (Clear Well),  
o Terrorism (System), 
o Contamination (Water Tower), 
o Break in Distribution (Distribution), 
o Pressure Regulating Valve Failure (High Lift), 
o Fire (Entire System), 
o Vandalism (System), 
o Manpower Shortage (System),  
o Water Line Break (Water Tower), and 
o Structural Fault (Water Tower). 

Inclusions 

Filtered Water Turbidity was included for discussion as a critical control point 
as it meets the MOECP’s requirements for a minimum CCP. The procedure 
that addresses how turbidity is monitored and controlled is included with the 
Appendices of this Plan as the QMS Filtered Water Turbidity CCP Procedure 
(QMS OP-P2). 

8.3 The Redwood Estates Drinking Water System 

8.3.1 Ranked Hazards Table (presented in declining order of risk) 

Process Step 
Hazard/Hazardous 

Event 
Result 

D
e

te
ct

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

To
ta

l 

C
C

P
? 

Distribution Cross connection Possible contamination of treated water 5 5 5 15 No 

Distribution Backflow Possible contamination of treated water 5 5 4 14 No 

Raw Water Source water contamination Contamination of source supply  5 5 1 11 No 

Clearwell Contamination/Chemical spill Loss of potable water 5 5 1 11 No 

Security Terrorism 
Possible loss of treated water, 
contamination of treated water, loss of 
WTP 

5 5 1 11 No 

Raw Water Low level well Loss of supply 1 5 1 7 No 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 85 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 25 of 51 

 

Process Step 
Hazard/Hazardous 

Event 
Result 

D
e

te
ct

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

To
ta

l 

C
C

P
? 

Chlorination Chlorine feed system failure Loss of disinfection 1 5 1 7 Yes 

Clearwell Chlorine analyzer failure 
Possible distribution of unchlorinated 
water, loss of potable water 

1 5 1 7 No 

Distribution Loss of chlorine residual Possible contamination of potable water 1 5 1 7 Yes 

Distribution Sustained pressure loss 
Loss of pressure, possible contamination 
of water 

1 5 1 7 No 

Security Vandalism Possible contamination 1 5 1 7 No 

Security Building damaged by vehicle Loss of WTP 1 5 1 7 No 

Entire System Extreme weather events Damaged equipment 1 5 1 7 No 

Manpower Personnel shortage Loss of treated water 1 5 1 7 No 

Raw Water Well pump failure Loss of raw water supply 1 3 2 6 No 

Entire System Power failure Loss of treated water 1 2 2 5 No 

Entire System Treatment system piping failure Loss of treated water 1 2 1 4 No 

Entire System 
Long term impacts of climate 
change 

Loss of water supply 1 2 1 4 No 

Raw Water Raw water feed line break Loss of raw water supply 1 1 2 4 No 

Raw Water Check valve failure Loss of raw water supply 1 1 2 4 No 

Raw Water 
Communication failure between 
WTP and well 

Loss of raw water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Raw Water 
Sudden changes to raw water 
characteristics 

Treatment deficiency 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Valve failure Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Filtration Piping failure Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Backwash Power failure Filter clogging, increased turbidity 1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift Power failure  Loss of pumps, loss of treated water 1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift Pump failure Loss of treated water 1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift Pump failure (pumps #2 and #3) Loss of back-up water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

High Lift Power failure (pumps #2 and #3) Loss of back-up water supply 1 1 1 3 No 

Entire System 
Sustained extreme 
temperatures 

Damaged equipment 1 1 1 3 No 

Bladder Tanks Failure of piping, bladder tanks Loss of pressure control 1 1 1 3 No 

Pressure 
Controls 

Pressure tanks or pressure line 
burst 

Loss of pressure 1 1 1 3 No 

Control 
Systems 

Power failure Loss of process water 1 1 1 3 No 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 86 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 26 of 51 

 

 

8.3.2 Critical Control Points (CCPs) 

The critical threshold was set at “7”. In this case, a number of hazards 
identified whose total risk met or exceeded the threshold were contingency 
situations and offered little operator opportunity to monitor, control or 
mitigate the hazard in real time. They are discussed in the following section 
under “Exclusions”. 

Two points exceeded the risk threshold, but offered operators an opportunity 
to monitor, control or mitigate the hazard: 

o Primary Chlorination (chlorine feed system failure), and 
o Distribution (loss of chlorine residual). 

The procedures that address how these points are monitored and controlled 
are included with the Appendices of this Plan as the QMS Primary 
Chlorination CCP Procedure (QMS OP-P1), and the QMS Distribution Systems 
Chlorine Residual CCP Procedure (QMS OP-P3). 

8.3.3 Rationale for Inclusion/Exclusion of CCPs 

Exclusions 

Several hazards/hazardous events exceeded the risk threshold, but the 
process steps to which they belong were not deemed to be a CCPs: 

o Cross Connection (Distribution), 
o Source Water Contamination (Raw Water), 
o Contamination (Clear Well),  
o Terrorism (Security), 
o Low Level Well (Raw Water), 
o Chlorine Analyser Failure (Clearwell), 
o Distribution Line Break (Distribution), 
o Vandalism (Security), 
o Building Damaged by Vehicle (Security), and 
o Personnel Shortage (Manpower).  

Inclusions 

Filtered Water Turbidity was included for discussion as a critical control point 
as it meets the MOECP’s requirements for a minimum CCP. The procedure 
that addresses how turbidity is monitored and controlled is included with the 
Appendices of this Plan as the QMS Filtered Water Turbidity CCP Procedure 
(QMS OP-P2). 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 87 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 27 of 51 

 

9. Organizational Structure, Roles, Responsibilities and 
Authorities 

9.1 Organizational Structure 

 

     

 

     

          

     The Township of South Glengarry 
Drinking Water System Owner 

     
          

                    

      

 

      

            

      Mayor & Council 
Representatives of the Owner 

      
            

                    

       

 

       

              

       
CAO 

       
              

                    

 Operating Authority 
Top Management 

              

  

 

       

              

       General Manager – 
Infrastructure Services 

       
              

                    

                    

  QMS Representative 

 

 
         

       Director of 
Water/Wastewater 

Operations  

 

        

                   

        

 

        

                

        Water Works 
Operators 

        

                

                 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 88 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 28 of 51 

 

9.2 Drinking Water System Owner 

The Township of South Glengarry is the Drinking Water System Owner. 

9.3 Top Management 

The DWQMS defines Top Management by the following criteria: 

o They work within the Operating Authority, 
o They will make decisions about the QMS, 
o They will make recommendations to the Owner about the subject system or 

subject systems, and 
o They are at the highest level of management within the Operating Authority 

making these decisions and recommendations. 

In South Glengarry, Drinking Water Top Management team is a position held solely 
by the General Manager – Infrastructure Services. 

9.4 Responsibility for Management Review 

The Management Review process is described in the QMS Management Review 
Procedure (QMS SYS-P12). Key responsibilities pertaining to this process are detailed 
below and are also contained within the procedure. 

9.4.1 Top Management 

Top Management responsible for: 

o Ensuring that a Management Review is conducted at least once every 
twelve months, 

o Selecting participants for the management review,  
o Leading the Review, and 
o Communicating the Review’s outcomes to the System Owner, 

represented by the Township’s Mayor and Councillors.  

9.4.2 QMS Representative 

With respect to the Management Review, the QMS Representative is 
responsible for: 

o Ensuring that all information required for the Review is made available 
to the Review participants as per the QMS Management Review 
Procedure (QMS SYS-P12), and 

o Participating in the Management Review itself. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 89 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 29 of 51 

 

9.5 Roles, Responsibilities and Authorities 

9.5.1 The Township of South Glengarry (Owner), represented by Mayor 
and Council 

Responsibilities Authorities 

Overall responsibility to provide safe and reliable 
drinking water to the customers of South Glengarry. 

Ensure the provision of all necessary resources for the 
maintenance of the waterworks infrastructure and the 
Quality Management System. 

Endorse the QMS Operational Plan. 

Ensure that an accredited Operating Authority is in place 
for each Operational Subsystem within its drinking water 
portfolio. 

Delegate the management of the drinking 
water system to qualified staff. 

Overall administrative and financial 
authority relating to the drinking water 
system. 

Recommend changes to the Operating 
Authority’s QMS Operational Plan. 

9.5.2 Top Management 

Responsibilities Authorities 

Ensure that the Drinking Water Operational Subsystems 
are being operated in compliance with current 
regulations and that a safe and reliable supply of water is 
being provided to customers of South Glengarry. 

Ensure a Quality Management System is in place that 
meets the requirements of the Drinking Water Quality 
Management Standard. 

To ensure a QMS Representative is in place. 

Effectively communicate the Quality Management 
System according to the QMS Communications 
Procedure (QMS SYS-P9). 

Determine, obtain or provide the resources needed to 
maintain and continually improve the Quality 
Management System and communicate these needs to 
the Owner. 

Lead the Management Review of the QMS and 
communicate its outcomes to the Owner according to 
the QMS Management Review Procedure (QMS SYS-
P12). 

Lead the annual Infrastructure Review using the QMS 
Review and Provision of Infrastructure Procedure (QMS 
SYS-P3) and the QMS Infrastructure Maintenance, 
Rehabilitation & Renewal Procedure (QMS SYS-P4). 

To act as financial and administrative 
authority relating to the drinking water 
system(s). 

Ensure that staff is in place to effectively 
manage the Operational Subsystems and 
the QMS. 

To appoint a QMS Representative. 

To communicate with regulatory bodies on 
legal and compliance issues relating to 
drinking water. 

To conduct the QMS Management Review. 

To recommend changes to the QMS 
Operational Plan. 

To Lead, conduct, or commission analysis 
of the Operational Subsystems to enable 
effective long term planning and 
budgeting relating to staffing and 
infrastructure, maintenance and capital 
work, and communicate the outcomes of 
these reviews to the Owner. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 90 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 30 of 51 

 

9.5.3 Director of Water/Wastewater Operations (see also: QMS 
Representative) 

Responsibilities Authorities 

Directs the overall planning, co-ordination and control of 
the technical activities and business affairs of the Water 
Operations Department. 

Ensure that bylaws, policies and procedures of the 
Township are complied with by Staff. 

Ensure adequate staffing levels of competent Operators. 

Adhere to current regulations, record and report system 
conditions to Top Management as required. 

Ensure that Staff is aware of all applicable legislative and 
regulatory requirements that pertain to their duties for 
the operation of the subject systems. 

Conduct, at a minimum, annual assessments of operator 
competency. 

Ensure a Quality Management System is in place that 
meets the requirements of the Drinking Water Quality 
Management Standard. 

Promote awareness of the Quality Management System 
throughout the Operating Authority. 

Determine, obtain or provide the resources needed to 
maintain and continually improve the Quality 
Management System and communicate these needs to 
Top Management. 

 

To assume command of emergency 
situations in the Operational Subsystems. 

To prepare responses to regulatory bodies 
on legal and compliance issues relating to 
drinking water. 

To direct the activities of Operators in day 
to day operations and maintenance. 

To communicate with regulatory bodies on 
legal and compliance issues relating to 
drinking water. 

To make changes to the QMS Operational 
Plan. 

To hire, train and discipline operators. 

 

9.5.4 QMS Representative 

Responsibilities Authorities 

Administer the Quality Management System by ensuring 
that processes and procedures needed for the Quality 
Management System are established and maintained. 

Report to Top Management on the performance of the 
Quality Management System and any need for 
improvement. 

Identify and communicate (to Top Management) 
resources needed for the continued operation and 
improvement of the QMS. 

Promote awareness of the Quality Management System 
throughout the Operating Authority. 

Ensure that current versions of documents required by 
the Quality Management System are being used at all 

To change, update and improve the QMS 
Operational Plan and to approve QMS 
documents. 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 91 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 31 of 51 

 

Responsibilities Authorities 

times as per the QMS Document Control Procedure 
(QMS SYS-P1). 

Participate in the annual Infrastructure Review, led by 
Top Management, in keeping with QMS SYS-P3 and QMS 
SYS-P4. 

Collect and provide information to Top Management for 
use in the Management Review and participate in the 
Review itself according to QMS SYS-P12. 

Schedule annual reviews of operator competency. 

Additional responsibilities as specified by QMS 
procedures. This includes overall responsibility for the 
Risk Assessment and Internal Audit processes. 

9.5.5 Operators 

Responsibilities Authorities 

Operate, monitor and maintain the water works system. 

Collect samples, perform testing and adjust treatment 
processes as required. 

Maintain required certification for Treatment & 
Distribution System Operation (as applicable), as per the 
Ministry of the Environment regulations. 

Conduct daily operational duties in compliance with 
current regulations. 

Act upon, record and report incidents of non-compliance 
with regulations as per O. Reg 170/03 and O. Reg 
128/04. 

Ensure that the documents (procedures, forms) used in 
day-to-day operations are the appropriate version as 
described in the QMS Document Control Procedure 
(QMS SYS-P1).  

Report document errors and omissions to the QMS 
Representative. 

Understand the QMS and be able to describe their role 
within it to auditors and inspectors. 

Attend training as required and scheduled by QMS 
Representative to maintain licenses. Obtain records of 
training and provide these records to the QMS 
Representative. 

Collect samples and perform testing within 
the Operational Subsystems to ensure the 
provision of safe and reliable drinking 
water. 

Respond to water-related issues raised by 
customers as required. 

Recommend changes to the QMS 
Operational Plan. 

 

  

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 92 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 32 of 51 

 

10. Competencies 

Competence:  the combination of observable and measurable knowledge, skills, and abilities 
which are required for a person to carry out assigned responsibilities. 

10.1 Identifying Required Competencies 

The following table identifies the minimum competencies of Staff whose roles 
directly impact the provision of safe and reliable drinking water in South 
Glengarry.  

Role Required Competencies 

General Manager – 
Infrastructure Services            
(Top Management)       

An advanced theoretical and working knowledge of the Safe 
Drinking Water Act and applicable regulations. 

Ability to effectively communicate QMS and Regulatory issues 
to staff, Council and external agencies. 

Director of 
Water/Wastewater 
Operations                         
(see also: QMS 
Representative) 

An advanced theoretical and working knowledge of the Safe 
Drinking Water Act and applicable regulations. 

Ability to effectively communicate QMS and Regulatory issues 
to staff, Council and external agencies. 

High level of knowledge of the Safe Drinking Water Act and 
applicable regulations sufficient to identify, report, and respond 
to adverse drinking water conditions when they occur.  

High level of technical knowledge of the Township’s drinking 
water systems sufficient to prevent and/or mitigate hazards to 
drinking water safety. 

Thorough understanding of the DWQMS and QMS Operational 
Plan. 

Minimum Class 2 Treatment License. 

Minimum Class 2 Distribution License. 

Valid driver’s license. 

QMS Representative Thorough understanding of DWQMS and QMS Operational Plan. 

QMS and QMS Internal Audit Training. 

A working knowledge of the Safe Drinking Water Act and 
applicable regulations sufficient to interpret, understand and 
communicate, as required, all QMS references to them. 

High level of administrative capabilities, strong written 
communication abilities and computer skills.  

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 93 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 33 of 51 

 

Role Required Competencies 

Operators A working knowledge of the Safe Drinking Water Act and 
applicable regulations sufficient to identify, report, and respond 
to adverse drinking water conditions when they occur.  

Technical knowledge of the drinking water systems operated by 
the Township sufficient to prevent and/or mitigate hazards to 
drinking water safety. 

Strong understanding of what is required to operate and 
maintain the drinking water facilities that the Township 
operates. Operators must know how to keep the plants running, 
and keep them clean. 

Ability to follow QMS and Operational procedures. 

Minimum OIT Treatment Certificate while working towards the 
highest level attainable. 

Minimum OIT Distribution Certificate while working towards the 
highest level attainable. 

Valid driver’s license. 

 

10.2 Satisfying Competencies 

Competence can be defined as the “demonstrated ability to apply knowledge and 
skills”. In order to assess competence, an organization must consider an 
employee’s education, training, skills and experience. 

The QMS Representative maintains an ongoing, electronic record of training 
hours, including: 

o License details and expiry dates for each operator, 
o Director approved training required and completed, and 
o On-the-job training required and completed. 

The methods used by the Township to ensure competence of the personnel 
directly involved in the production of safe drinking water are summarized in the 
following table. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 94 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 34 of 51 

 

 

Role Methods for Satisfying Competency 

General Manager – 
Infrastructure 
Services             

(Top Management)       

Monthly, the General Manager is briefed on operating conditions by the 
Director of Water/Wastewater Operations. The Director of 
Water/Wastewater Operations notifies the General Manager of any 
relevant changes to drinking water regulations. 

Annually, as part of the Management Review, the General Manager is 
provided information which allows him to stay up-to-date on the 
functioning of the QMS. 

Director of 
Water/Wastewater 
Operations                          
(see also: QMS 
Representative) 

Maintenance of the required licenses demonstrates competency. 

The Director of Water/Wastewater Operations schedules his own 
training and provides records of this training to the QMS Representative. 

Annually, the General Manager conducts an assessment of the Director 
of Water/Wastewater Operations’ competency and completed training 
hours in the current license cycle. The General Manager provides a 
record of this review to the QMS Representative for retention as per the 
QMS Records Control Procedure (QMS SYS-P2). 

QMS 
Representative 

The QMS Representative schedules his own training relating to the QMS 
and associated standards and regulations. 

Annually, Top Management assesses the competency of the QMS 
Representative as part of the QMS Management Review Process 
described in QMS SYS-P12.  

The QMS Representative receives an assessment of all of his 
responsibilities (as he is also the Director of Water/Wastewater 
Operations) on an annual basis, conducted by the General Manager. This 
assessment includes a review of completed and scheduled training hours 
in the current license cycle. The record of this review, as with all others, 
is retained by the QMS Representative as per QMS SYS-P2. 

Operators Maintenance of required licenses demonstrates competency. 

Director will assist the Operators to schedule their own training and 
provide records of this training to the QMS Representative. 

The Director of Water/Wastewater Operations is responsible for 
regularly assessing and ensuring the competency of operators. This is 
conducted informally using a variety of means.  

Annually, the Director of Water/Wastewater Operations conducts an 
assessment of each Operator’s competency and provides a record of this 
review to the QMS Representative for retention as per the QMS Records 
Control Procedure (QMS SYS-P2). This assessment includes a review of 
completed and scheduled training hours in the current license cycle. 

Staff receive training at regularly scheduled meetings. 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 95 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 35 of 51 

 

11. Personnel Coverage 

11.1 General Information 

The Township of South Glengarry manages its drinking water systems with a 
minimum three full-time operators who are led and managed by the Director of 
Water/Wastewater Operations. These same personnel also manage the 
wastewater systems in the Township. During morning meetings, the Director of 
Water/Wastewater Operations provides all personnel with their assignments for 
the day. 

The full-time operators are unionized, and work a 7am to 4:30pm schedule, 
Monday to Thursday, and 7am to 11am on Friday. 

The ORO for all systems is the Director of Water/Wastewater Operations. In 
situations whereby the ORO is away for an extended period, each facility’s 
contingency manual describes how the role of ORO will be assigned. 

11.2 Emergency and Back-Up Scheduling and Response 

After-hours and emergency coverage is ensured by the on-call schedule, set by 
the ORO. Full-time operators fulfil the role of on-call operator on a weekly, 
rotating basis. The schedule is generally set and posted quarterly. Any scheduling 
conflicts or revisions are handled between the operators, with the ORO requiring 
notification of adjustments and providing final judgment on the schedule. 

11.3 In the Event of a Walk-Out or Strike 

Water and Wastewater has been deemed an essential service as per the 
collective agreement.  

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 96 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 36 of 51 

 

12. Communications 

The Township of South Glengarry acknowledges that if a QMS is not effectively communicated, 
it is not implemented. 

The DWQMS standard requires a procedure that describes how relevant aspects of the QMS are 
communicated between Top Management and: 

o The Owner, 
o Operating Authority Personnel, 
o Suppliers, and  
o The Public. 

Additionally, the standard calls for a procedure to describe how QMS-related information is fed 
back to Operating Authority Top Management. 

Through the QMS Communications Procedure (QMS SYS-P9), the Township seeks to ensure that 
all stakeholders of the Drinking Water System are aware of the QMS and its importance. 
Further, it aims to make certain that all who share responsibility for the production of safe and 
reliable drinking water understand their roles, the responsibilities and authorities that come 
with those roles, and the QMS processes and procedures that are relevant to those roles.  

The QMS Communications Procedure (QMS SYS-P9) is attached in the Appendices of this 
document. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 97 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 37 of 51 

 

13. Essential Supplies and Services 

Products and services used in a drinking water operation can introduce risk. By documenting the 
level of quality expected, and by continuing to assess whether or not supplies and services 
consistently meet these requirements after they have been selected, an operating authority 
demonstrates due diligence in minimizing the risk to drinking water quality. The tabular 
summary below is taken from the QMS Essential Supplies and Services List (QMS SYS-T3). 

 
Current Listing of Essential Supplies and Services 

Essential 
Product/Service 

Procurement 
Process 

Quality 
Requirements 

Primary Supplier Secondary Supplier 

Accredited Laboratory 
Services  

As required MOECP licensed 
(CALA certification) 

Caduceon 
(613) 526-0123 

SGS Envrionmental 
(705) 652-2124 

Analytical Supplies As required Township 
satisfaction 

Hach 
1-905-290-9580 

 

Calibration  Annual 
schedule 

ISA certified control 
systems technician 

Tower Electronics 
Canada  
613-847-7623 

ISI Controls 
(613)843-0026 
Cell(613)-795-0027 

Chlorination 
Equipment 

As required Township 
satisfaction 

Metcon 
(905)738-2355 

SPD 
(905) 678-2882 

Chlorine As required 
 

NSF/ANSI 60 
certification 

Brenntag 
1-888-852-8793 

 

Coagulant As required NSF certification Kemira 
1-800-465-6171(1) 

 

Distribution Repair 
Parts 

As required AWWA Standard, as 
applicable 

Crane Supply 
(613) 932-1116 
(613) 932-6225 

Noble 
(613) 933-5600 

Distribution Vacuum 
Digging 

As required Township 
satisfaction 

DBC 
(613)5343861 
(613)537-8561 

Capital Steam Clean 
(613) 932-3108 

Electrical Supplies As required CSA, as applicable Guillevin Int. 
(613) 938-8433 

Westburne 
(613) 933-1075 

Ultrasonic Level 
Controls 

As required CSA, as applicable Milltronics 
(705) 745-2431 

Grey Line 
(613) 938-8956 

The Township of South Glengarry has developed a procedure that describes how it ensures the 
quality and availability of supplies and services deemed essential to the drinking water systems 
it operates. The document is called the QMS Essential Supplies and Services Procedure (QMS 
SYS-P7) and it is included with the Appendices of this Operational Plan.  

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 98 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 38 of 51 

 

14. Review and Provision of Infrastructure 

The Township of South Glengarry has developed a procedure for the annual review of the 
infrastructure necessary to safely and effectively operate and maintain the drinking water 
systems belonging to and operated by the Township. 

The procedure ensures a consistent, regular review of the condition and capacity of the drinking 
water systems that are operated by the Township of South Glengarry. A thoughtful, effective, 
and reliable review that is effectively communicated to the Owner ensures that infrastructure 
needs are appropriately communicated to those who can provide them. 

The QMS Review and Provision of Infrastructure Procedure (QMS SYS-P3) is included with the 
Appendices of this Operational Plan Manual. 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 99 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 39 of 51 

 

15. Infrastructure Maintenance, Rehabilitation and 
Renewal 

Effective maintenance programs help to safeguard the reliability and performance of a drinking 
water system, protect the investment of the Owner, and minimize risks to drinking water supply 
and quality. 

A procedure has been created and implemented detailing how these functions are to take place. 
It is the QMS Infrastructure Maintenance, Rehabilitation and Renewal Procedure (QMS SYS-P4) 
and is included with the Appendices of this Operational Plan. 

By following this procedure, the Township of South Glengarry is ensuring that a regular review 
of its maintenance programs and their effectiveness is conducted, and the results are 
communicated to the Owner. In this way, requests for resources originating from the Operating 
Authority will be accompanied with context and analysis when it comes time for the Owner to 
review and make decisions about them. 

Unplanned Maintenance 

Unplanned maintenance is conducted as soon as possible after an issue is discovered. For each 
facility, repair and replacement activity is recorded in the facility log book. 

Frequency and impact of equipment failure is included in the annual discussion of the 
Township’s maintenance programs, as described in QMS SYS-P4. 

Rehabilitation and Renewal 

Planning for rehabilitation and renewal now takes place annually, and follows the QMS Review 
and Provision of Infrastructure Procedure (QMS SYS-P3). Infrastructure condition and capacity 
are evaluated during these reviews, and the outcomes are communicated to the Owner in a 
consistent format. 

Drinking water infrastructure annual reviews fit within the framework of the Township’s Capital 
Planning Study (2019). As discussed in QMS SYS-P3, the General Manager – Infrastructure 
Services and the Director of Water/Wastewater Operations use the Capital Planning Study to 
guide their annual capital budget requests of Council. Actual rehabilitation and renewal that 
occurs in each budget cycle is dependent on Council’s authorization. 

Summaries 

The following tables detail the Township’s existing programs for planned maintenance of the 
drinking water systems it operates. 

The Township recognizes the importance of keeping these summaries current, communicating 
the programs and any modifications of them to the Owner, and periodically reviewing the 
effectiveness of its maintenance programs.  

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 100 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 40 of 51 

 

15.1 The Glen Walter Drinking Water System 

Planned Maintenance 

System Element Activity Timing/Frequency 

Raw Water 
Transmission 

1. Screens at crib Check/Clean Every 5 years by diver 

2. Screens in WTP Check/Clean Annually 

3. Zebra Mussel 
Control (Cl2 
application) 

Check and monitor Ongoing 

Water 
Treatment 
Plant 

1. Low lift pumps 
Greasing and cleaning of 
parts 

Annually 

2. Filters 
Visual inspection and 
physical measurement of 
media depth 

Annually 

3. Filters Visual inspection for faults Ongoing 

4. Primary Cl2 injectors 
and rotameters 

Cleaning and visual checks Annually and ongoing 

5. Flow meters Calibration/verification Annually 

6. Turbidity Analysers Cleaning Monthly 

7. High Lift Pumps 
Greasing and cleaning of 
parts 

Annually 

8. Coagulant Pumps Cleaning Annually 

9. Turbidity Analysers Calibration Annually or as needed 

10. Backwash Pump Monitor Efficiency Ongoing 

11. Building 
Visual check of doors and 
structure for faults 

Ongoing 

12. Building Alarms 
Ensure entry alarm 
activates 

Ongoing 

13. Building Alarms Cl2  
Room – fire alarms, 
etc. 

Ensure alarms are 
operational 

Ongoing 

14. Security Fencing Visual inspection for faults Ongoing 

15. Generator Test run Monthly 

16. Generator 
Oil change/performance 
review 

Semi-Annually/Annually 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 101 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 41 of 51 

 

Planned Maintenance 

System Element Activity Timing/Frequency 

17. Communication 
Systems – 
Telephone and 
Monitoring Centre 

Ensure lines of 
communication are active 

Ongoing 

Distribution 

1. Entire System 
Visual inspection for water 
distribution leaks 

Daily (ongoing) 

2. Distribution chlorine 
analyser 

Verifying calibration with 
pocket colorimeter 

Every 72 hours 

3. Dead end water 
mains 

Flushing Quarterly 

4. Valves Exercising Annually 

5. Hydrants Lubricating ears Annually 

6. Hydrants Greasing of operating nut Annually 

7. Hydrants 
Ensure markers are in 
place, paint hydrants as 
needed 

Annually 

8. Hydrants 
Inspect outside of barrel for 
cracks or deterioration of 
bolts 

Annually 

9. Hydrants and water 
mains 

Flushing Annually 

10. Hydrants Pumping of hydrant barrels Annually – late fall 

 

15.2 The Lancaster Drinking Water System 

Planned Maintenance 

System Element Activity Timing/Frequency 

Raw Water 
Transmission 

1. Screens at crib Check/Clean Every 5 years by diver 

2. Screens in WTP Check/Clean Annually 

3. Zebra Mussel 
Control (Cl2 
application) 

Check and monitor Ongoing 

Water 
Treatment 

1. Low lift pumps Monitor efficiency Ongoing 

2. Coagulant feed 
system 

Cleaning Annually 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 102 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 42 of 51 

 

Planned Maintenance 

System Element Activity Timing/Frequency 

Plant 3. Filters 
Visual inspection of moving 
parts 

Ongoing 

4. Filters 
Physical measurement of 
media depth 

Annually 

5. Primary Cl2 feed 
system 

Visual checks for liquid 
leaks 

Ongoing 

6. Primary Cl2 pumps Cleaning Annually 

7. Flow meters Calibration Annually or as needed 

8. Turbidity Analysers Cleaning Monthly 

9. Turbidity Analysers Calibration Annually or as needed 

10. High Lift Pumps Monitor efficiency Ongoing 

11. Backwash Pumps Monitor Efficiency Ongoing 

12. Building 
Visual check of doors and 
structure for faults 

Ongoing 

13. Building Alarms 
Ensure entry alarm 
activates 

Ongoing 

14. Building Alarms Cl2  
Room – fire alarms, 
etc. 

Ensure alarms are 
operational 

Ongoing 

15. Security Fencing Visual inspection for faults Ongoing 

16. Generator Test run Monthly 

17. Generator 
Oil change/performance 
review 

Semi-Annually/Annually 

18. Communication 
Systems – 
Telephone and 
Monitoring Centre 

Ensure lines of 
communication are active 

Ongoing 

Distribution 

1. Entire System 
Visual inspection for water 
distribution leaks 

Daily (ongoing) 

2. Distribution chlorine 
analyser 

Verifying calibration with 
pocket colorimeter 

Every 72 hours 

3. Dead end water 
mains 

Flushing Quarterly 

4. Valves Exercising Annually 

5. Hydrants Lubricating ears Annually 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 103 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 43 of 51 

 

Planned Maintenance 

System Element Activity Timing/Frequency 

6. Hydrants Greasing of operating nut Annually 

7. Hydrants 
Ensure markers are in 
place, paint hydrants as 
needed 

Annually 

8. Hydrants 
Inspect outside of barrel for 
cracks or deterioration of 
bolts 

Annually 

9. Hydrants and water 
mains 

Flushing Annually 

10. Hydrants Pumping of hydrant barrels Annually – late fall 

 

15.3 The Redwood Estates Drinking Water System 

Planned Maintenance 

System Element Activity Timing/Frequency 

Water 
Treatment 
Plant 

1. High Lift Pumps Grease Annually 

2. Turbidity Analysers Calibrate and clean Annually or as needed 

3. Primary Cl2 feed 
system 

Check for liquid leaks Ongoing 

4. Filters 
Physical measurement of 
media depth 

Annually 

5. Cl2 bench top 
analyser 

Verification with Pocket 
Colorimeter 

Weekly 

Distribution 

1. Entire System 
Visual inspection for water 
distribution leaks 

Daily (ongoing) 

2. Distribution chlorine 
analyser 

Verifying calibration with 
pocket colorimeter 

Ongoing 

3. Alarm System 
Verification of set points 
and communication with 
monitoring command post 

Ongoing 

4. Generator Test run Weekly “auto” 

5. Generator 
Oil change and 
maintenance 

Annually 

Building and 
Perimeter 

1. Doors, locks and 
fencing lights 

Visual check Ongoing 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 104 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 44 of 51 

 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 105 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 45 of 51 

 

16. Sampling, Testing and Monitoring 

This element of the QMS Operational Plan addresses how measurements are taken within the 
drinking water system to monitor what is happening, the Operating Authority’s level of control, 
and the quality of treated drinking water. 

The Township of South Glengarry understands the focus of the sampling, testing and monitoring 
component of the DWQMS as being to ensure: 

o The reliability of the sampling, testing and monitoring performed to meet legislated 
requirements, 

o That adequate operational sampling, testing and monitoring are undertaken to 
maintain the Treatment process and identify potential problems early, and 

o That sampling, testing and monitoring activities are planned, consistently performed, 
documented and communicated. 

Regulatory requirements determine what is to be sampled and set minimum requirements for 
frequency. The DWQMS requires that the following additional information be described by the 
Operating Authority: 

o Details about how sampling, testing and monitoring is performed on the conditions 
most challenging to the drinking water system, 

o Relevant sampling, testing, and monitoring activities that are performed upstream of 
the subject system (even if they are not carried out by the Operating Authority), and 

o How the Owner and Operating Authority share sampling, testing and monitoring 
results. 

A procedure to address these requirements has been implemented. It is called the QMS 
Sampling, Testing and Monitoring Procedure (QMS SYS-P5) and is included in the Appendices of 
this Operational Plan. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 106 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 46 of 51 

 

17. Measurement and Recording Equipment Calibration 
and Maintenance 

If measurement and recording devices are used to inform and guide an operator’s actions within 
a drinking water system, those devices must be appropriately maintained and calibrated. 

A procedure has been written and implemented that documents how the measurement and 
recording equipment used by the Township of South Glengarry is calibrated and maintained, 
who is responsible for scheduling the calibrations and how the calibration results are recorded.  

The document is included in the Appendices of this Operational Plan Manual as the QMS 
Measurement and Recording Equipment Calibration and Maintenance Procedure (QMS SYS-P6). 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 107 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 47 of 51 

 

18. Emergency Management 

The development, implementation and maintenance of procedures to ensure emergency 
preparedness are recognized by the Township of South Glengarry as an important facet of the 
QMS. Emergencies, as defined in the MOECP’s Implementation Guide and as used in this 
document, are: 

o Potential situations or service interruptions that may result in the loss of the ability 
to maintain a supply of safe drinking water to customers. 

By effectively anticipating and planning for emergency situations, the consequences of 
emergencies, when they occur, can be mitigated.   

The Township of South Glengarry maintains emergency preparedness as described in its QMS 
Emergency Management Procedure (QMS SYS-P10). This procedure describes how the 
Operating Authority maintains, communicates, and tests the robustness of its emergency 
preparedness. Additionally, this document lists the emergency situations that are a natural 
outcome of the QMS Risk Assessment process (described by QMS SYS-P8), describes how 
responsibility for response and communication is delineated, refers to applicable operations 
procedures and provides a general list of emergency contacts. 

The QMS Emergency Management Procedure (QMS SYS-P10) is included in the Appendices of 
this Operational Plan Manual. Specific operations procedures relating to the list of potential 
emergencies identified by the Township will be included in the QMS as they are developed. 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 108 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 48 of 51 

 

19. Internal Audits 

An internal audit of the Township’s QMS is conducted annually to ensure that: 

o The QMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) and its associated procedures 
meet or exceed the standard of the DWQMS for each element, and 

o The Operating Authority is functioning in conformance with its own Operational Plan. 

An effective internal audit program, conducted by positive internal auditors and supported by 
interested and involved management and personnel at various levels, is a useful tool for testing 
and improving the robustness of a QMS. High quality internal audits lead to continual 
improvement, a requirement of the DWQMS.  

Additionally, internal audits serve a valuable purpose by providing feedback on the effectiveness 
of the QMS, and by informing and focusing the Management Review Process. 

The output of the audit process is an audit report which includes: 

o A completed audit checklist, 
o Corrective action request (CAR) forms for each issue of non-conformance, 
o A brief summary detailing the outcomes of the audit, including areas of strong 

performance and areas of non-conformance, and 
o A list of suggested improvements to the audit process and audit checklist. 

The Township of South Glengarry has described the process used to conduct internal audits in 
its QMS Internal Audit Procedure (QMS SYS-P11). This procedure is included as part of the 
Appendices of this document. 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 109 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 49 of 51 

 

20. Management Review 

The Township of South Glengarry recognizes that support and oversight of the drinking water 
QMS is an important role fulfilled by Top Management. The Management Review process 
supports a high level of connection and familiarity between Top Management and the QMS, and 
enables focused and effective decision making regarding how to best improve and maintain the 
quality management system. 

The Township has prepared a procedure that describes how QMS Management Reviews are to 
be conducted. The document is called the QMS Management Review Procedure (QMS SYS-P12) 
and it is included in the Appendices of this Operational Plan Manual. 

In following the Management Review procedure, Top Management ensures that the Owner 
receives consistent, timely, and focused information about how the QMS is functioning. 
Additionally, the process affords an opportunity to reinforce with the Owner the resources that 
are required to continue to maintain and improve the quality management system. 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 110 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 50 of 51 

 

21. Continual Improvement 

A QMS cycle is described as PLAN, DO, CHECK, and IMPROVE.  

The Township of South Glengarry recognizes that this Operational Plan is simply a beginning. 
The element of Continual Improvement, while it has no PLAN requirement, is a reminder that 
the Township is obligated to continually strengthen and improve its QMS.  

The Township expects that the processes it has described, both in this document and its 
associated procedures, will change and evolve over time as the QMS matures. It believes that 
this evolution will be initiated by the corrective action processes built into the Plan, and, in 
particular, described in the areas relating to Internal Audit and Management Review. 

 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 111 of 223



 

The Township of South Glengarry Drinking Water QMS 
Multi-System DWQMS Operational Plan Manual (QMS SYS-OP PLAN) 

 

V7 Revised September 12, 2019 
 

Page 51 of 51 

 

List of Appendices 
 

Appendix A QMS Document Control Procedure  QMS SYS-P1 

Appendix B QMS Records Control Procedure  QMS SYS-P2 

Appendix C QMS Review and Provision of Infrastructure Procedure  QMS SYS-P3 

Appendix D 
QMS Infrastructure Maintenance, Rehabilitation and Renewal 
Procedure  

QMS SYS-P4 

Appendix E QMS Sampling, Testing and Monitoring Procedure  QMS SYS-P5 

Appendix F 
QMS Measurement and Recording Equipment Calibration and 
Maintenance Procedure  

QMS SYS-P6 

Appendix G QMS Essential Supplies and Services Procedure  QMS SYS-P7 

Appendix H QMS Risk Assessment Procedure  QMS SYS-P8 

Appendix I QMS Communications Procedure  QMS SYS-P9 

Appendix J QMS Emergency Management Procedure  QMS SYS-P10 

Appendix K QMS Internal Audit Procedure  QMS SYS-P11 

Appendix L QMS Management Review Procedure  QMS SYS-P12 

Appendix M 
Comprehensive Risk Assessment Outcomes – Glen Walter (Sept 15, 
2009) 

QMS SYS-F4 
(completed form) 

Appendix N 
Comprehensive Risk Assessment Outcomes – Lancaster (Sept 16, 
2009) 

QMS SYS-F4 
(completed form) 

Appendix O 
Comprehensive Risk Assessment Outcomes – Redwood Estates 
(Sept 16, 2009) 

QMS SYS-F4 
(completed form) 

Appendix P QMS Primary Chlorination CCP Procedure  QMS OP-P1 

Appendix Q QMS Filtered Water Turbidity CCP Procedure  QMS OP-P2 

Appendix R QMS Distribution Systems Chlorine Residual CCP Procedure  QMS OP-P3 

 

Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)

Page 112 of 223



 
 

1|3 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No. 117-2019 

 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Ewen MacDonald, GM Infrastructure Services 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Place St. Laurent Phase 5 Capacity Allocation 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. In September 2017 EVB Engineering provided a presentation to Council on the 
future development plans for the Place St. Laurent Subdivision. 
 

2. Phases 1 through 3 of the Place St. Laurent Subdivision have been completed 
and Phase 4 has recently been registered. 
 

3. There are 20 lots proposed in Phase 5 of the subdivision and the developer has 
requested allocation for water and waste water services. 
 

4. Council approved the annual development allocation for 2019 at the March 4th 
Council meeting. There are 127 water connections and 18 waste water 
connections available in the Glen Walter System. 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

5. Pursuant to the conditions of By-law 24-11 for the Allocation of Capacity, 80% of 
the available capacity is to be allocated to general development and a developer 
can only be approved for up to 40% of the capacity allocated to general 
development.  
 

6. Administration cannot approve the request for allocation, as only 6 connections 
would be available as per the provisions of the by-law. The Developer was 
advised of the decision of Administration in 2017. The follow-up EVB 
Presentation in 2017 requested Council reconsider the request for allocation.  
There is an appeal process in the By-law and although the appeal was not 
formally submitted, the presentation in 2017 was clearly asking for 
reconsideration. 
 

Place St. Laurent Phase 5 Capacity Allocation (E. MacDonald)

Page 113 of 223



 
 

2|3 
 

7. Section 7.5.4 of the by-law permits Council to approve a request for allocation by 
resolution. There are a few factors for Council to consider concerning the 
decision of approving or not approving the allocation request. 
 

8. There are 74 connections that have been pre-approved and 42 of these 
connections are allocated to the Purcell Road Subdivision.  This allocation was 
approved in March 2016 through a 10 year agreement with the developer that 
included the following condition: 
 
This agreement is subject to review after 5 years and the Capacity Allocation 
may be reassessed, if no infrastructure for Phase 1 has been installed by July 1, 
2021 this agreement will be null and void.  

 
9. The Purcell Subdivision has Draft Plan Approval and no activity has taken place 

in the Purcell Subdivision to date. It is unlikely that the developer will be able to 
meet the July 2021 date for construction as the outstanding reports, approvals, 
utilities plans, and design will likely not be completed by the specified date.   
 

10. If the 42 lots are removed from the calculation for remaining capacity the 
available connections would be 30.  Administration approached the owner of the 
Purcell Subdivision to discuss options to extend the agreement in exchange for a 
reduced number of connections without success. 
 

11. Although it is not recommended to allocate capacity beyond the calculated 
remaining capacity, the Township’s waste water treatment plant has historically 
exceeded the criteria for effluent quality and the Ministry of the Environment has 
not noted any concerns with the high flows.   
 

12. Options to increase the capacity for waste water treatment are currently under 
review through the Master Servicing Plan Environmental Assessment and a 
preferred option will be developed that the Township will need to pursue to 
expand the services in the greater Glen Walter Area. 
 

IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 
N/A 
 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
Goal 1: Enhance economic growth and prosperity. 
 
 
 
 

Place St. Laurent Phase 5 Capacity Allocation (E. MacDonald)

Page 114 of 223



 
 

3|3 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 68-2019 be received and that the Council of the 
Township of South Glengarry hereby approves capacity for 20 lots for Place St. Laurent 
Phase 5 as per the request of the developer.  
 
 
 
 

 

Place St. Laurent Phase 5 Capacity Allocation (E. MacDonald)

Page 115 of 223



 
 

1|3 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No. 119-2019 

 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Ewen MacDonald – GM Infrastructure Services 
 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist 
Museum Bathroom Renovations  
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

1. The Township was successful in obtaining a grant of $16,510.00 from the 
Federal Enabling Accessibility Fund to be used to offset the cost of renovations 
to the washrooms at the Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist Museum. 
 

2. The Township requested $55,000.00 for the project based on the preliminary 
estimates from the Engineers. 
 

3. The renovations will include the demolition of the existing washrooms and part of 
the kitchen to accommodate a fully accessible barrier free washroom and a 
second standard washroom.  
 

4. The Architectural Plans and Project Specifications for the work has been 
completed by EFI Engineering for Industry and a Tender for the Washroom 
Renovations was issued with a closing date of September 30th. 
 

5. There were two submissions received: 
 

Contractor Cost Plus HST 

Grant Marion $48,900.00 

John Gordon $54,264.00 

Engineers Estimate $41,625.00 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 

6. The submissions have been reviewed and the low bidder scored the highest in 
the evaluation criteria. 
 

Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist Museum Bathroom Renovations (E. MacDonald)

Page 116 of 223



 
 

2|3 
 

7. The project is to be completed by January 31st, 2020 as per the Conditions of the 
Grant Agreement. 
 

8. The Building Code has included barrier-free design provisions since 1975 and 
the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (the AODA) was the 
driving force behind the recent accessibility requirements in the Building Code (a 
regulation under the Building Code Act, 1992). These new provisions were 
drafted to consolidate all accessibility requirements for buildings in one code. The 
new accessibility requirements in the Building Code came into force on January 
1, 2015 with the goal of achieving accessibility for Ontarians with disabilities by 
2025.  
 

9. There will be additional work to update the doors to accessibility standards that 
will need to be budgeted and completed by the 2025 target date. 
 

10. The building will also need additional work to address structural and operational 
issues along with improving energy efficiency over the next number of years.  A 
preliminary estimate of the works was developed in 2016 with an investment of 
$330,000.00 required to address the needs for the sustainability of this facility in 
the future. 
 

11. The renovations to the kitchen will be completed in 2020 by the Township’s 
Parks & Facilities Staff. 

 
IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 

12. The Township had requested $55,000.00 for the project based on the preliminary 
estimates from the Engineers. 
 

13. In 2018 $20,000.00 was transferred to the Glengarry Nor’Westers Museum 
Reserve to offset the cost of the renovation project. 

 
14. An additional $10,000.00 was budgeted for the project in 2019. 

 
15. There is a total of $46,510.00 for the project which is slightly less than the low 

submission.   
 

16. The Township will work with the contractor to see if the cost can be reduced on 
specific items without compromising the quality and durability of the project. 

 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
Goal 2: Invest in infrastructure and its sustainability. 
Goal 4: Improve quality of life in our community.  

Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist Museum Bathroom Renovations (E. MacDonald)

Page 117 of 223



 
 

3|3 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report 119-2019 be received and that Council award 
Tender 10-2019 for the renovations to the washrooms at the Glengarry Nor’Westers & 
Loyalist Museum to Grant Marion Construction Ltd. as per their submission of 
$48,900.00 plus HST and furthermore, that the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to sign 
any relevant documents. 
 
 
 

 

Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist Museum Bathroom Renovations (E. MacDonald)

Page 118 of 223



Project Title: Washroom Renovation to GNLM

Williamstown, ON

Construction Cost Estimate - Class 'D' Project No.: Date June 5, 2019

No. Item Comments

Qty Unit Unit Cost Amount

1 Demolition

2

Misc. demolition(stud walls, ceiling, floor finish, 

plumbing, mechanical, etc.) 2 ppl x 1 day 1 lot 1,280.00$               1,280.00$          

3 Disposal fee's 1 lot 200.00$                  200.00$             

4 New Construction (washroom work only)

5 New interior man door (3'-2"x7') (x2) Including hardware 2 lot 1,500.00$               3,000.00$          

6 Barrier-free automatic door operators Universal washroom door 1 lot 5,500.00$               5,500.00$          *

7 Universal washroom Incl. accessories 1 lot 9,000.00$               9,000.00$          

8 Unisex washroom Incl. accessories 1 lot 5,000.00$               5,000.00$          

9 Interior finishes (ceilings) Suspended ±122 sq. ft. 1 lot 800.00$                  800.00$             

10 Interior finishes (floors) Ceramic ±122 sq. ft. 1 lot 160.00$                  160.00$             

11 New Steel Stud Walls Lin. Ft. 33 $/ft 20.00$                    660.00$             

12 Electrical equipment Panels, switches, sensors, etc. 1 lot 2,000.00$               2,000.00$          

13 Electrical Panel relocate & wiring re-route 2 men x 2 days 1 lot 2,500.00$               2,500.00$          

14 Lighting Interior 1 lot 1,000.00$               1,000.00$          

15 Misc. Painting & wall repair 1 lot 1,000.00$               1,000.00$          

16 Misc. Piping - Domestic 1 lot 600.00$                  600.00$             

17 Exhaust fans x2 units & venting 2 lot 300.00$                  600.00$             

18 Demolition Sub Total 1,480.00$          

19 Construction Sub Total 31,820.00$        

20 Contingency 25% 8,325.00$          

21 Total 41,625.00$        

*=Received written quotes (Coleman) for item

Material

19-6346

Washroom Work

Page 1 of 1

Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist Museum Bathroom Renovations (E. MacDonald)

Page 119 of 223



CLASS 'D' ESTIMATE
NOR WESTERS AND LOYALIST MUSEUM

SEPTEMBER 12TH 2016

CONSTRUCTION COSTS  COSTS 

INCLUDING CONTINGENCY AND TAXES

DIRECT COST (COST OF WORK)

PREPARATION
DEMOLITION

Interior demolition 7,450.38 $ 

SUB-TOTAL 7,450.38 $ 

ENVELOPE
ROOF

Replace gutters 4,251.68 $ 

Replace metal roof 43,460.55 $ 

DOORS AND WINDOWS

Replace wooden doors with hardware 17,384.22 $ 

Replace wooden windows 0.00 $ 

Repair wooden windows 39,735.36 $ 

Caulking 2,524.85 $ 

MASONRY

Brick replacement 0.00 $ 

Masonry repairs 42,218.82 $ 

Foundation parging 1,771.53 $ 

SUB-TOTAL 151,347.02 $ 

INTERIOR RENOVATION
Replace kitchen 24,834.60 $ 

Combine two bathrooms to have one accessible w.-c. 10,761.66 $ 

Renovate and re-organize Loyalist room layout 19,139.20 $ 

Renovate and re-organize acession area room layout including small air exchanger 13,245.12 $ 

Renovate stairway to 2nd floor 16,556.40 $ 

Replace handrail to stairway to basement 827.82 $ 

S O $SUB-TOTAL 85,364.80 $ 

INFRASTRUCTURE
ELEVATOR

Stair-lift 11,589.48 $ 

PLUMBING

Upgrade plumbing 11,589.48 $ 

ELECTRICAL

Upgrade electrical, lighting, emergency signage 28,973.70 $ 

SUB-TOTAL 52,152.66 $ 

TOTAL 296,314.86 $ 

INDIRECT COSTS
PROFESSIONAL FEES

Architect 34,068.80 $ 

Structural engineer (for brick replacement) 0.00 $ 

OTHER

Permit 2,637.20 $ 

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS 36,706.00 $ 

GRAND TOTAL MAJORÉ                                                   333,020.86 $ 

Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist Museum Bathroom Renovations (E. MacDonald)

Page 120 of 223



 
 

1|2 
 

 
 STAFF REPORT S.R. No. 120-2019 

 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Ewen MacDonald – GM Infrastructure Services 
 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

COUNCIL DATE: 
 

October 7, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Stone Dust Quotation 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. Quotations from three Contractors were requested for the supply and placement of 

winter stone dust.  The deadline for submissions was September 20th, 2019. 
 

2.  Two Submissions were received as follows: 
 

Contractor Airport Road 
2,500 Tonnes 

North Lancaster 
1,000Tonnes 

 
Cornwall 
Gravel $11.95/tonne $29,875.00  $13.95/tonne $13,950.00 

COCO 
Group 

 No bid No bid $11.75/tonne $11.750.00 

 
2018 

 

 
$10.90/tonne 

 
 

 
$9.90/tonne 

 
 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
3. The submissions have been reviewed and Administration is recommending that the 

Quotation be awarded to the low bidder in each location. 
 

IMPACT ON 2019 BUDGET: 
 
4. The 2019 budget for winter material is $300,000.00. As of September 3rd, 

$245,817.34 has been spent for winter materials, leaving a balance of $54,182.66 
for the remainder of 2019. 

Stone Dust Quotation (E. MacDonald)

Page 121 of 223



 
 

2|2 
 

 
5. The stone dust quantities are for the entire 2019/2020 winter season and a 

calculation of the stone dust and salt remaining at the end of the year will determine 
the dollar value of the material that will need to be carried forward for the 2020 
budget.  

 
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Staff Report  120-2019 be received and that the Quotation for 
the supply of winter stone dust be awarded to Cornwall Gravel Company Ltd as per 
their quote of $11.95 per tonne for the Airport Road Site and to COCO Group as per 
their quote of $11.75 per tonne for the North Lancaster Patrol Yard. 
 
 
 

 

Stone Dust Quotation (E. MacDonald)

Page 122 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy 

PREPARED BY: Joanne Haley, GM Community Services 

 
 

Council has completed a first reading of the draft Tree Canopy and Natural 

Vegetation Policy. Council directed Administration to complete further public 

consultation on this policy.   

On September 9, 2019, a public information session was held with approximately 83 

people in attendance, 13 members of the public spoke at the meeting and 23 written 

comments were received including comments from the Raisin Region Conservation 

Authority.  

Council is encouraged to read the attached written comments in detail, as some very 

good points, ideas and thoughts have been provided from all submissions. Additional 

considerations include the verbal presentations, as well as the recommendations 

from the Agricultural Advisory Committee.  

In order to advance the draft policy, please provide direction to Administration as to 

what changes should be made to the draft policy.  Alternatively, a discussion can 

occur at the Council meeting for Administration to gain further insight as to what type 

of policy you want for the Township South Glengarry.  Administration can then 

amend the draft policy for Council to complete second reading.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 123 of 223



 

 

 

 

South Glengarry 

 

POLICY 

Policy Number: 03-2019 Review Frequency: Every 5 Years 

Approved By: 
Council  Date Approved:  

Revision Date:  

Subject: Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy 

  
 
Background and Purpose 
 
Section 270(1) (7) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001 c. 25, requires municipalities to 
adopt and maintain policies with respect to the manner in which a municipality will 
protect and enhance the tree canopy and natural vegetation. 
 
The purpose is to establish a tree canopy and natural vegetation policy and to reduce 
the loss of tree coverage in South Glengarry and to protect and increase tree coverage.   
 
What is a Tree Canopy?  
 
Tree Canopy includes all areas of coverage by plant material which includes the layer of 
leaves, branches and stems that cover the ground when viewed from above.  
 
What is Natural Vegetation? 
 
Natural vegetation refers to the plant life that grows naturally in a geographical region. 
The plants that make up natural vegetation are valuable resources as they provide 
timber, fruits, medicinal plants, shelter to animals, oxygen and protect soil and store 
water. 
 
Benefits  
 
There are many benefits to a tree canopy and natural vegetation policy; they include but 
are not limited to: 
 

• Reduces air pollution 

• Provides shelter for wildlife 

• Improves the usability of public parks and spaces 

• Improves the aesthetics of properties 

• Improves water quality 

Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 124 of 223



 

 

2 | 3 

 

• Assists in stormwater management 

• Prevents erosion 
 
Applicability 
 
The policy applies to all properties and development, on public and private lands within 
the Township of South Glengarry.   
 
Nothing in this policy is intended to conflict with existing standards or policies of the 
Township and this policy does not take priority over any by-laws, plans, resolutions or 
agreements passed by Council pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001 c. 25 or 
Planning Act, R.S.O, 1990, c. P 13.  
 
Nothing in this policy is intended to restrict normal farm practices as defined by the Farm 
Practices Protection Act, R.S.O, 1990 c. F6  
 
Priority Actions (In no particular order) 
 

1. Prevent tree removal within Township open and unopened road allowances. 
 

2. Prevent tree removal on Township-owned land. 
 

3. Increase tree planting on Township-owned land, especially within public parks 
where possible. 

 
4. Acquire forested land when offered through land donations.  

 
5. Support the United Counties of SDG in forested land acquisitions within the 

Township of South Glengarry.  
 

6. Support and promote the Raisin Region Conservation Authority Tree Seedling 
Program.  

 
7. Support residents and others in developing tree planting plans that ensure the long 

term survival of the tree plantings. 
 

8. Support and participate where possible in tree planting efforts by the Raisin Region 
Conservation Authority.  
 

9. Develop a municipal commemorative tree program where people can buy and plant 
trees in municipal parks in honour of their loved ones who have passed or 
organizations. 
 

Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 125 of 223



 

 

3 | 3 

 

10. Require a tree planting schedule as a condition of draft plan approval for new 
subdivisions that will require one native tree in front of each lot within the front yard. 
 

11. Support the replacement of native trees that are proposed to be removed as part of 
a development; either in a new location on the subject property or in a mutually 
agreed upon location elsewhere in the Township. 
 

12. Encourage tree planting as part of the Landscaping Program within the Township’s 
Community Improvement Plan. 
 

13. Implement the existing Official Plan policies related to Significant Woodlands, 
Provincially Significant Wetlands and Natural Heritage Systems. 
 

14. Encourage residents to obtain an approved managed forest plan and to have their 
properties classified as a Managed Forest to take advantage of the Managed 
Forest Tax Incentive Program where you pay 25% of the municipal tax rate set for 
residential properties. 
 

Monitoring 
 
The General Manager of Community Services shall be responsible for monitoring the 
implementation of this policy.  

Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 126 of 223



1 
 

 

PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

 

A PUBLIC MEETING OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

SOUTH GLENGARRY WAS HELD IN THE EVENING AT THE 

TOWNSHIP OFFICE, LANCASTER ON SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 AT 7:00 

PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Frank Prevost, Deputy Mayor Lyle Warden, Councillor 

Martin Lang, Councillor Stephanie Jaworski, Councillor Sam McDonell. 

STAFF PRESENT: Clerk Kelli Campeau, Meeting Chair/GM Community 

Services Joanne Haley 

OPEN PUBLIC MEETING  

The meeting was opened at 7:02 pm.  

Ms. Haley provided an overview of the meeting process and rules of 
decorum. The floor was opened for public comment.   

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Councillor Jaworski welcomed attendees and fully supports the public 

consultation. She believes all input comes from a place of good faith and 

looks forward to hearing comments.  

Tina Cairncross (4658 Glen Roy Rd.) expressed concerns about rapidly 

disappearing tree canopy in the Township. Advised not to lose sight of the 

importance of forests – loss of forests will affect who wants to live here. 

She believes there is very little in the action plan that will accomplish the 

purpose of the policy, 5 year review period is too long. 

Geraldine Fitzpatrick (19 Boundary Rd.) recommended that the policy 

include that all fruit and nut trees be protected – maintain the tree rather 

than disrupt and destroy it. Ms. Fitzpatrick spoke about black walnut trees 

and their benefits (host butterflies and larvae).  

Jacqueline Milner (19166 Hay Rd.) suggested that the policy review 

period be every 2 years or as needed. She further encouraged that 

OMAFRA best practices be implemented. Policy items # 6 and 8 – RRCA 

tree planning efforts have been supported but do not grow our canopy 

numbers. Policy items # 10 and 11 – consider leaving a portion of tree and 

natural vegetation cover in new proposed subdivisions keeping tree cover 

community intact and keeps wildlife health.  

Shawn McRae (21502 Highway 2) spoke about individual property rights 

and concerns that the policy will take rights from property owners. Stated 

that there is no direction from the Province to infringe on property rights – 

let property owners retain value of what they have.  

Pat St. Pierre (20093 Wentworth Rd) spoke about concerns that trees on 

his property would become a financial liability. He disagrees with policy 

item #14 and believes the tax rate should be 0% tax in order to encourage 

people to have trees and not cut them for business.  

Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 127 of 223



2 
 

Paul Vogel (3995 Lafleur Rd.) spoke to the importance of farming in order 

to feed the population. Believes that farming should be able to take place 

without the government putting restrictions on the land.  

Gordon Ferguson (5133 County Rd. 34) spoke about unopened road 

allowances, many of which have mature trees on them. Concerned about 

clear cutting on unopened road allowances. Suggested the Township 

needs to look at ways to regulate these unopened road allowances and 

the by-laws currently in place.  

Shawn St. Pierre (20373 Lagoon St.) questioned how the word 

‘development’ is interpreted in the policy. He raised concern that policy 

item #11 is a pre-cursor to a tree cutting by-law. Expressed that a tree 

cutting by-law is unfair to those who are responsible.  

Elaine Kennedy (President of Woodlot Association, non-resident) 

encouraged all in attendance to consider how the policy will help everyone 

work together and how it will affect the greater community. Stated that the 

Woodlot Association will be submitting written comments and will look at 

some of the specific concerns raised tonight.  

Pete Bock (non-resident) spoke about the how clear-cutting leads to 

unfair taxation. 

Chris Craig (19786 Maple Rd.) spoke about past history of clear-cutting in 

the area and replanting of the forests. Encouraged landowners to work 

together and expressed that farmers should be given the tools and 

financial backing they need (ie. tax incentive program).  

Tony Vogel (19543 County Road 19) spoke about the need for farming 

practices. Expressed that we need to work together and conserve the 

trees and farmland.  

John Ferguson (5205 County Rd. 34) expressed that the policy focus 

should be narrowed to start with looking at publicly-owned lands that the 

Township has control over. Enforceable policies should be developed to 

give guidance to Township to assist in decision making.  

 

2. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Ms. Haley advised that written comments will be accepted until September 

18, 2019 and that a revised draft policy will be brought to Council at a later 

date.  

 

Mayor Prevost thanked all for coming. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 128 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 129 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 130 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 131 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 132 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 133 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 134 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 135 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 136 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 137 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 138 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 139 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 140 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 141 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 142 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 143 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 144 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 145 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 146 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 147 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 148 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 149 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 150 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 151 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 152 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 153 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 154 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 155 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 156 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 157 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 158 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 159 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 160 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 161 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 162 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 163 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 164 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 165 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 166 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 167 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 168 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 169 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 170 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 171 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 172 of 223



Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)

Page 173 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: 
Martintown Mill Harvest Dinner - Request for 

Donation 

PREPARED BY: Lachlan McDonald, GM Corporate Services 

 
 
Attached you’ll find a donation request from John Smith, on behalf of the Martintown Mill 
Preservation Society for $170.  The request is to offset the rental fee they incurred when 
renting the Martintown Community Centre for their Annual Harvest Dinner.   
 
Their event saw 110 community members supporting the Mill. 
 
There is room in the Council Discretion fund to accommodate this request. If Council 
would like to support the request, you may do so by resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Martintown Mill Harvest Dinner - Request for Donation (L. McDonald)

Page 174 of 223



Martintown Mill Harvest Dinner - Request for Donation (L. McDonald)

Page 175 of 223



 
 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 

 

MOVED BY: Stephanie Jaworski   RESOLUTION NO ________________ 

 

SECONDED BY _____________________ DATE  October 7, 2019  

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of South Glengarry hereby 

supports the resolution passed by the Township of Larder Lake and requests that 

Provincial Ministers and the Premier offer electronic delegations to small and rural 

municipalities that do not have sufficient budgets to attend conferences and furthermore 

that this resolution be sent to the Premier, all Provincial Ministries and the Township of 

Larder Lake.   

□ CARRIED  □ DEFEATED    □ POSTPONED  

 

                                                                                           ________________________ 

                                                                                           Mayor Frank Prevost 

 

Recorded Vote:  Yes No 

 

Mayor Prevost  ___ ___ 

Deputy Mayor Warden ___ ___ 

Councillor Lang               ___ ___ 

Councillor Jaworski  ___ ___ 

Councillor McDonell  ___ ___ 

 

Notice of Motion for Consideration At This Meeting - Provincial Electronic Delegations (S. Jaworski)

Page 176 of 223



Notice of Motion for Consideration At This Meeting - Provincial Electronic Delegations (S. Jaworski)

Page 177 of 223



 

1 
 

 
September 16, 2019 

 
MINUTES OF 

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT  
 

Township of South Glengarry 
 
A meeting of the Committee of Adjustment was held at 6:30 pm on September 16, 2019 in 
the Council Chambers at the municipal building in Lancaster, Ontario. 
 
Committee Members present were: Mayor Frank Prevost, Deputy Mayor Lyle Warden, 
Councillor Stephanie Jaworski, Councillor Sam McDonell, Councillor Martin Lang and 
Secretary- Treasurer Joanne Haley. 
 
MOVED BY: Martin Lang 
SECONDED BY: Stephanie Jaworski 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Committee of Adjustment meeting of September 16, 2019 is 
hereby called to order. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
Approval of Agenda  
 
MOVED BY: Sam McDonell 
SECONDED BY: Frank Prevost 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Agenda be approved as presented. 
   
CARRIED 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
MOVED BY: Sam McDonell 
SECONDED BY: Stephanie Jaworski 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Minutes of the September 3, 2019 meeting be approved as 
presented.   

Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 178 of 223



 

2 
 

   
CARRIED 
 
Members of the public at this meeting were as follows: 
 
Kelsey MacDonald- Agent for applicant- A-17-10 
Tim, Steve & Chris McNally- part Property Owner- A-17-10 
Eric Marion- Applicant- A-18-19 
Jacque Titley- Property Owner- A-18-19 
Ray Piche & Paulette Lalonde- Neighbour -A-18-19 
Rick & Suzanne Leroux- Neighbour- A-18-19 
 
 
Review of Application: 
 
Application A-17-19 MacDonald 
 
J Haley provided to the Committee the following information: 
 

• Subject Property: 
 

• Part of Lot 22, Concession 1 Front in the Geographic Township of Charlottenburgh, 

now in the Township of South Glengarry, County of Glengarry also known as 18694 

County Road 2 

 

• Proposed Minor Variance:  
 
• The applicant is demolishing an existing seasonal dwelling and proposing to 

construct a new single detached dwelling. The new dwelling will encompass the 
footprint of the existing dwelling and is proposed to expand to the east and the 
north.  

• Part 3.39 (7) (c) - to reduce the Watercourse Setback from 30 meters to 9.31 
meters from the top of bank of the St. Lawrence River to the south east corner of 
the proposed dwelling, to 25.05 meters to the north east corner and to 27.57 
meters to the proposed north west corner of the dwelling 

• The property is designated Residential District in the County Official Plan.  This 
application conforms to the general intent of the Official Plan 

• The property is zoned Limited Services Residential  & Floodplain- Holding 
•  A portion of the application conforms to the general intent of the zoning by-law as 

the dwelling as proposed will increase its foot print to the north of the existing 
structure which exceeds the minimum 15 meter setback 

Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 179 of 223



 

3 
 

• This application was circulated to applicable municipal staff; Planning does not 
support the proposed dwelling to go wider than the existing footprint because it 
cannot meet the minimum 15 meter watercourse setback 

• RRCA received additional information and is now in support of this application. The 
development will be subject to an Ont. Reg 175/06 Permit prior to a building permit 
being issued. 

• I have received no formal comments from the public to date 
 
Discussion: 
 
Member Frank Prevost asked for clarification on how much wider the proposed structure is 
proposed to be than the existing structure.  J Haley responded that the structure is proposed 
to be 3’.2” wider and will square off the building if approved.  
 
MOVED BY: Frank Prevost 
SECONDED BY: Sam McDonell  
 
This application has been Approved as the variance is considered minor in nature and 
desirable for the use of the land. No public comments were received regarding this 
application that resulted in the need to refuse the application; therefore, the committee 
approves the application. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Application A-18-19 MacDonald 
 
J Haley provided to the Committee the following information: 
 

• Subject Property: 
 

• Part of Lot 5, Concession 1 Broken Front, I. L. in the Geographic Township of 

Charlottenburgh, now in the Township of South Glengarry, County of Glengarry also 

known as 18372 County Road 2 

 

• Proposed Minor Variance:  
 
• The applicant is proposing to demolish an existing dwelling and proposing to 

construct a new single detached dwelling. The new dwelling will encompass the 
footprint of the existing dwelling and is proposed to expand to the east, the west, 
the south and slightly to the north to make the structure square.  

• Part 6.2- to reduce the front yard setback from 6 meters to 2.95 meters to the 
proposed dwelling and to reduce the rear yard setback from 6 meters to 4.16 
meters to the proposed south west column that will support the second floor deck.  

Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 180 of 223



 

4 
 

• Part 3.39 (7) (c) - to reduce the Watercourse Setback from 30 meters to 8.33 
meters from the top of bank of the St. Lawrence River to the south west corner of 
the proposed dwelling, to 11.75 meters to the south east corner of the proposed 
dwelling and to 4.16 meters to the proposed south west column that will support 
the proposed second floor deck and to 7.37 meters to the proposed south east 
column that will also support the proposed second floor deck. 

• The property is designated Residential District and is located in the Glen Walter 
Urban Settlement Area in the County Official Plan.  This application conforms to the 
general intent of the Official Plan 

• The property is zoned Residential One & Floodplain- Holding 
•  A portion of the application conforms to the general intent of the zoning by-law as, 

the dwelling as proposed, will increase its foot print to the south and east of the 
existing structure which exceeds the minimum 15 meter setback 

• A portion of the application does not conform to the general intent of the zoning by-
law as the proposed structure is proposed to be larger and will expand to the east 
and south resulting in requesting the watercourse setback to be reduced from 30 
meters to 4.16 meters to the closest point where the by-law requires a minimum 15 
meter setback 

• This application was circulated to applicable municipal staff; Planning does not 
support the proposed dwelling to go larger than the existing footprint because it 
cannot meet the minimum 15 meter watercourse setback 

• RRCA supports the request to reduce the front yard setback but does not support 
this application and requests that the proposed development be downsized- refer 
to comments 

• I have received no formal comments from the public to date 
 
Discussion: 
 
Member Martin Lang asked for clarification if the proposed dwelling is located on the same 
footprint. Eric Marion explained the location of the existing dwelling including the existing 
deck, the location of the proposed dwelling and the proposed second floor deck.  Mr. Marion 
confirmed that the new structure is proposed to be squared off and will not take up any more 
footprint than the existing structure including the existing deck.  
 
Member Stephanie Jaworski asked about the comments from the RRCA and their concern 
with access.  J Haley explained that the RRCA implements the Ministry of Natural Resources 
technical guidelines and manuals.  They have a concern with both side yard access and 
adequate space along the shoreline for repair work etc.  Eric Marion indicated that he can 
demonstrate that equipment can access the property to do repair work if required 
 
Member/Chair Lyle Warden requested confirmation on the existing deck compared to the 
proposed and referred to Application A-17-19.  
 

Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 181 of 223



 

5 
 

Neighbour Rick Leroux explained that he recently learned that his fence is located on the 
subject property.  J Haley explained that the property owner paid for a survey to be 
completed very recently.  The only way to ensure that the lot line is in the correct location 
would be for Mr. Leroux to also have a survey completed of his property to determine if there 
is a property line dispute.  If Mr. Leroux chooses not to obtain a survey, he was encouraged 
to work out an arrangement with Mr. Titley. This is not an issue for the Committee of 
Adjustment to address as there is no encroachment into the interior side yard.     
 
MOVED BY: Frank Prevost 
SECONDED BY: Sam McDonell  
 
This application has been Approved as the variance is considered minor in nature and 
desirable for the use of the land. All agency comments were carefully considered, no public 
comments were received regarding this application that resulted in the need to refuse the 
application; therefore, the committee approves the application. 
 
 
Next Meeting date: October 7, 2019 
 
Adjournment 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the meeting of September 16, 2019 be adjourned to the call of the 
Chair @ 6:28 p.m. 

Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019

Page 182 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: 
Fall Planning and Building Open House and 

Information Session  

PREPARED BY: Joanne Haley, GM Community Services 

 
 
Please find attached a notice for our upcoming Planning and Building Open House and 
Information Session on October 23, 2019 at 7:00 pm at the Township of South 
Glengarry Municipal Office. 
 
The Departments were unable to hold an open house and information session in the 
spring due to workload; however, we will return to our regular schedule of hosting a fall 
and spring open house. This open house will feature two topics that have not been 
presented in detail in the past.  These topics are: 
 

• How to close a building permit and why you should. 

• Everything you need to know about the Site Grading and Drainage By-law. 
 
We invite and encourage all to attend to learn about these topics and to meet the staff! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fall Planning and Building Open House and Information Session

Page 183 of 223



Township of South Glengarry  
6 Oak Street, P.O. Box 220, Lancaster, ON, K0C 1N0 

T: (613) 347-1166 | F: (613) 347-3411 
www.southglengarry.com  

Page 1 of 1 
 

Planning & Building Departments 
Open House & Information Session 

 

• Are you planning a construction or renovation project? 

• Would you like information about building permits and the building permit process? 

 

The Township of South Glengarry will be hosting an Open House & Information session.  

 

Date: Wednesday, October 23rd, 2019 

Time: 7:00 pm 

Location: Township Office (Council Chambers)  

6 Oak Street 

Lancaster, Ontario 

 

Topics of discussion are as follows, however if there are any topics that you would like 

information on, please let us know prior to October 16th, 2019 so that we can be prepared to 

answer your questions and have any applicable information available. 

 

• How to Close a Building Permit and Why You Should. 

• Everything you need to know about the Site Grading and Drainage By-law. 

• Land Use Planning Questions and Answers. 

 

For more information please check the Township website or contact Gary Poupart, Director of 

Development & Chief Building Official at 613-347-1166, ext. #230 or 

gary@southglengarry.com. 

Fall Planning and Building Open House and Information Session

Page 184 of 223

http://www.southglengarry.com/
mailto:gary@southglengarry.com


INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Hazardous Waste Day 

PREPARED BY: Ewen MacDonald – GM Infrastructure Services 

 
 
 

For the benefit of Council, Administration and residents of the Township of South 
Glengarry, we are pleased to report on the household hazardous waste that has 
been diverted from our landfill sites as a result of the Household Hazardous 
Waste Collection Day held on September 14, 2019.   

We had a total of 272 Vehicles that participated in the Household Hazardous 
Waste Collection Day. 

The following table is a comparison between 2016 and 2019 of the Household 

Hazardous materials diverted from the landfill sites in our municipality.  

We would like to thank the Roads department, the Volunteer Firefighters and our 

Road Manager Chris Leblanc’s wife Linda and daughter Autumn for helping 

make this day go smoothly. 

 

Material 

 

2016 

 

2017 

 

2019 

 

Litres of Waste Oil 5420 5810 5100 

Litres of Waste Paint 19,000 15500 13500 

Litres of Aerosols 1,400 1100 1200 

Litres of Waste Flammable Liquids 8,300 7105 6510 

Litres of Glycol 410 205 410 

Kilogram of Oxidizing Solids (Nitrates) 100 400 300 

Hazardous Waste Day

Page 185 of 223



Kilograms Biomedical 200 80 60 

Litres of Corrosive Liquid toxic 600 800 400 

Kilograms Pharmaceuticals  200 200 100 

Litres Pesticides 700 700 600 

Litres sulfuric acid 300 400 200 

Litres Propane 400 300 400 

Kilograms Batteries 200 500 750 

Kilograms Fluorescent tubes  200 75 100 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Hazardous Waste Day

Page 186 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consent Application B-78-19 

PREPARED BY: Joanne Haley, GM Community Services 

 
 
 
RE: B-78-19 

Part Lot 11, Concession 7 

Former Township of Charlottenburgh 

Novotny 

Type of Consent: To Create a Building Lot 

Subject:   

The subject property is located on part of lot 11, Concession 7, on the east side of 

Chapel Road. The purpose of these applications is to create a building lot proposed to 

be 8.88 acres in size while retaining 9.1 acres of residentially developed land.  

Official Plan Designations: 

The subject property is designated Rural in the County Official Plan.  Section 8.14.13.3. 

D. I of the County Official Plan indicates that, “up to two consents for residential 

purposes may be granted for a legally conveyable lot, excluding the retained lot where 

the approval authority is satisfied that a plan of subdivision of the land is not necessary 

for the proper and orderly development of the land; where the lot existed as of January 

1, 1980 and where the land is located in the Rural District as shown on the Land Use 

Plan Schedules.”  This proposed consent conforms to the Official Plan. 

Zoning By-law: 

The subject property is zoned Rural in the Township’s Zoning By-law.  This proposed 

consent conforms to the Zoning By-law.  

Proposed Recommendation: 

That the United Counties of SDG Manager of Planning approves this application for 

consent as it conforms to the PPS, the Official Plan and the Zoning By-law.  This 

consent will be subject to the following conditions: 

Consent Application B-78-19

Page 187 of 223



1. A review fee of $200.00 must be paid to the Township for each application. 
 

2. A Parkland fee of $1,000.00 must be paid to the Township for each application.  
 

3. The Township of South Glengarry will complete a site visit of the severed and 
retained lands to confirm that there are no issues with proposed septic systems. 
Further information may be required from the applicant once the site visit is 
completed. The applicant will be required to attend to the Township office to apply 
for a site visit and to file a fee of $170.00. 

 
4. Confirm that the road widening previously created has been deeded to the 

Township.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Consent Application B-78-19

Page 188 of 223



Consent Application B-78-19

Page 189 of 223



Consent Application B-78-19

Page 190 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consent Application B-79-19 

PREPARED BY: Joanne Haley- GM- Community Services  

 
 
 
RE: B-79-19 

Part Lot 21, Concession 8  

Former Township of Lancaster 

Cholette 

Type of Consent: To dispose of a surplus dwelling to a farming operation.   

Subject:   

The subject property is located on part of lot 21, Concession 8, on the north side of 

Concession Road 8.  The purpose of this application is to sever approximately 2 acres 

of developed land that is surplus to the farming operation and to retain approximately 72 

acres of agricultural land. 

Official Plan Designations: 

The subject property is designated Agriculture in the County Official Plan. In Section 

8.14.13 II of the County Official Plan there are strict policies for consents in an 

Agricultural Designation.   

Section 8.14.13.II.1.2 indicates that “a consent may be granted on lands designated as 

Agricultural Resource Land as shown on the Land Use Plan Schedules for a residence 

surplus to a farming operation.”  This proposed consent conforms to the Official Plan.  

Section 8.14.13.II.7 indicates that “where a consent is granted for a residence surplus to 

a farming operation, a local Municipality shall through a Zoning By-law or other 

municipal approach prohibit further dwellings on the vacant retained lands created by 

the subject consent.” 

Zoning By-law: 

The subject property is zoned Agriculture in the Township of South Glengarry Zoning 

By-law. This proposed consent conforms to the Township’s Zoning By-law. 

Consent Application B-79-19

Page 191 of 223



Proposed Recommendation: 

That the United Counties of SDG Manager of Planning approves this application for 

consent as it conforms to the Official Plan, Zoning By-law and PPS.  This consent will 

be subject to the following conditions: 

1. A review fee of $200.00 must be paid to the Township. 
 

2. An agreement must be entered into with the Township of South Glengarry to 
prohibit residential construction on the retained lands. This restriction will be 
included in a housekeeping amendment of the Township’s Zoning By-law at a 
future date.  The cost to enter into the agreement is $1,000.00. 

 
3. The Township of South Glengarry will complete a site visit of the severed lands to 

confirm that there are no issues with the existing septic system. Further 
information may be required from the applicant once the site visit is completed. 
The applicant will be required to attend to the Township office to apply for a site 
visit and to file a fee of $170.00. 
 

4. Road widening for both the severed and retained parcels must be deeded to the 
Township.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Consent Application B-79-19

Page 192 of 223



Consent Application B-79-19

Page 193 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consent Application B-82-19 

PREPARED BY: Joanne Haley, GM Community Services 

 
 
RE: B-82-19 

Part Lot 31, Concession 6  

Former Township of Lancaster 

Newbrabant Farms Ltd.  

Type of Consent: To dispose of a surplus dwelling to a farming operation.   

Subject:   

The subject property is located on part of lot 31, Concession 6, on the west side of First 

Line Road. The purpose of this application is to sever approximately 2 acres of 

developed land that is surplus to the farming operation and to retain approximately 97 

acres of agricultural land. 

Official Plan Designations: 

The subject property is designated Agriculture in the County Official Plan. In Section 

8.14.13 II of the County Official Plan there are strict policies for consents in an 

Agricultural Designation.   

Section 8.14.13.II.1.2 indicates that, “a consent may be granted on lands designated as 

Agricultural Resource Land as shown on the Land Use Plan Schedules for a residence 

surplus to a farming operation.” This proposed consent conforms to the Official Plan.  

Section 8.14.13.II.7 indicates that “where a consent is granted for a residence surplus to 

a farming operation, a local Municipality shall through a Zoning By-law or other 

municipal approach prohibit further dwellings on the vacant retained lands created by 

the subject consent.” 

Zoning By-law: 

The subject property is zoned Agriculture in the Township of South Glengarry Zoning 

By-law. This proposed consent conforms to the Township’s Zoning By-law. 

 

Consent Application B-82-19

Page 194 of 223



Proposed Recommendation: 

That the United Counties of SDG Manager of Planning approves this application for 

consent as it conforms to the Official Plan, Zoning By-Law and PPS.  This consent will 

be subject to the following conditions: 

1. A review fee of $200.00 must be paid to the Township. 
 

2. An agreement must be entered into with the Township of South Glengarry to 
prohibit residential construction on the retained lands. This restriction will be 
included in a housekeeping amendment of the Township’s Zoning By-law at a 
future date.  The cost to enter into the agreement is $1,000.00. 

 
3. The Township of South Glengarry will complete a site visit of the severed lands to 

confirm that there are no issues with the existing septic system. Further 
information may be required from the applicant once the site visit is completed. 
The applicant will be required to attend to the Township office to apply for a site 
visit and to file a fee of $170.00. 
 

4. Road widening for both the severed and retained parcels must be deeded to the 
Township.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Consent Application B-82-19

Page 195 of 223



Consent Application B-82-19

Page 196 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Notice of Consent Decision  

PREPARED BY: Joanne Haley, GM Community Services  

 
 
 
RE: Notice of Consent Decisions 
 

Please find attached one “Notice of Decision” letter from the United Counties of Stormont, Dundas, and 

Glengarry. The recommendations and conditions requested have been included in the decisions as 

requested.   

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Notice of Consent Decision

Page 197 of 223



Notice of Consent Decision

Page 198 of 223



Notice of Consent Decision

Page 199 of 223



INFORMATION REPORT 

 

REPORT TO:  Council of the Township of South Glengarry 

MEETING DATE: October 7, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consent Summary 2019 

PREPARED BY: Joanne Haley, GM Community Services 

 
 
 

CONSENT APPLICATIONS SUMMARY- 2015 

Application # Recommendation Decision 

B-121-15 Recommended  

 

CONSENT APPLICATIONS SUMMARY- 2019 

# of 

Applications 

Application 

# 

Recommendation Decision 

1 B-14-19 Recommended Approved 

2 B-23-19 Recommended Approved 

3 B-28-19 Recommended Approved 

4 B-29-19 Recommended Approved 

5 B-37-19 Recommended Approved 

6 B-48-19 Recommended Approved 

7 B-53-19 Recommended  

8 B-64-19 Recommended  

9 B-78-19 Recommended  

10 B-79-19 Recommended  

Consent Summary 2019

Page 200 of 223



11 B- 82-19 Recommended  

12  B-83-19   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Consent Summary 2019

Page 201 of 223



County Strategic 
Priorities: 

• Preserve & enhance 
historical, cultural, 
tourism & recrea-
tional features to 
maintain quality of 
life 

• Plan for economic 
development 

• Inventory of         
infrastructure 

• Greater local      
government        
coordination in   
delivery of services 

United Counties of Stormont, Dundas and Glengarry 

September,  2019 

Council News  

Upcoming 

Events: 

     

   Council Meeting -  

   October 21, 2019 

 

   Warden’s Banquet 

   November 8, 2019 

     

United Counties of SDG 
26 Pitt Street 
Cornwall, ON  K6J 3P2 
P: 613.932.1515 
F: 613.936.2913 
W:  www.sdgcounties.ca 
 
 
Disclaimer 
This newsletter is provided 
for information only and is 
not considered an official 
Council document. For 
complete motions and 
reports please contact the 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
Helen Thomson 
County Clerk 
613-932-1515 x 203 
hthomson@SDGcounties.ca 

Upper Canada School Board Presentation 

John McAllister, Chair; John Danaher, Trustee, Ward 9; and Stephen Sliva, 
Director of Education, Upper Canada School Board provided Council with 
Board objectives and initiatives, which included open communication and 
working together with municipal partners. 

Council authorized a setback of 
9.14m from the centerline on 
County Road 18 in Williamsburg; 
and, a setback of 2.95m from the 
property line on County Road 2 in 
Glen Walter. 

CAO Simpson provided information on various meetings held during the 
recent AMO conference.   
 
Clerk Thomson provided information on the election of Warden for 2020 and 
Frank Prevost expressed interest in the position, with formal election to be 
held in October.   
 
Council received information and agreed to provide a letter of support for a 
proposed Cornwall Compassion Centre Maternity Home. 
 
Information was also provided on the new shoulder spreader; transportation 
and planning budget, PPS changes, and new Library MakerLab in Finch. 

Tenders 

Design of South Branch Bridge 
RFP - WSP - $68,605.. 
 
Martintown Bridge Repair—Willis 
Kerr Contracting Ltd. $106,164. 
 
Alexandria EA RFP– BT 
Engineering—$152,295. and 
provisional Origin/Destination Traffic 
Survey - $14,000. 

Key Information 

Submission on Joint and 
Several Liability 

Council endorsed information 
provided by CAO Simpson on joint 
and several liability, and authorized 
submission to the Attorney General 
as part of the consultation process. 

By-laws 

Setbacks Approved 

Budget Reallocation 

Council authorized reallocation of 
unused funds from equipment 
replacement and garage capital 
works accounts to purchase new 
pressure washer systems at the 
patrol garages. 

By-law No. 5207 - to establish 
public notice 
 
By-law No. 5208 - to amend 
existing five-year winter 
maintenance agreement with the 
Township of North Dundas 
 
By-law No. 5209 - to approve 
funding agreement between the 
Continuous Improvement Fund and 
the County 
 
By-law No. 5210 – to authorize 
amending agreement to the Road 
Use and Right of Way Agreement- 
Nation Rise Wind Farm Limited 
 
By-law No. 5211 - to adopt, confirm 
and ratify matters dealt with by 
resolution 

SDG Council September Newsletter

Page 202 of 223



 

OGRA Newsletter

Page 203 of 223



Ministry of
Municipal Affairs
and Housing

Office of the Minister

777 Bay Street, 17th Floor
Toronto ON  M5G 2E5
Tel.: 416 585-7000

Ministère des
Affaires municipales
et du Logement 

Bureau du ministre

777, rue Bay, 17e étage
Toronto ON  M5G 2E5
Tél. : 416 585-7000

19-4232

September 24, 2019

RE: Building Code Services Transformation

Dear Head of Council,

I am writing today to announce that my ministry is launching a consultation on potential 
changes to the delivery of building code services. On September 24, 2019, I released a 
discussion paper: Transforming and Modernizing the Delivery of Ontario’s Building 
Code Services.

Our government has heard from stakeholders about the need for better, modern, and 
timely services to support the building sector’s ability to understand and apply building 
code requirements. To do this, the ministry is proposing to establish a new 
administrative authority to deliver a suite of enhanced and new user-driven services. 
Modernized service delivery will ensure that the sector has the supports it needs to 
continue growing Ontario’s economy, while protecting public health and safety. 

Your feedback is important and will help inform enhancements to current building code 
services and the development of new services, which would:

 strengthen public safety

 streamline customer service and approval processes

 deliver sector-driven services

 provide timely and modern tools and products

 promote consistency across the province

 enhance integrity in the system.

…/2

Letter - Building Code Services Transformation

Page 204 of 223



-2-

We will also be hosting regional information sessions that will include an informational 
session for the sector earlier in the afternoon (1:00 - 3:00 p.m.) and a public open house
in the evening (5:30 - 7:00 p.m.). Sessions will be held on the following dates:

1. City of Belleville: Friday, October 4, 2019
Belleville Lions Club, 119 Station St., Belleville

2. City of North Bay: Monday, October 7, 2019
North Bay Memorial Gardens, 100 Chippewa St. W., North Bay

3. Municipality of Chatham-Kent: Wednesday, October 9, 2019
Chatham-Kent Cultural Centre, 75 William Street, Chatham-Kent

4. City of Vaughan: Wednesday, October 16, 2019
Vellore Hall, 9541 Weston Road, Woodbridge

For more information about this consultation and for additional ways to participate, 
please visit www.ontario.ca/buildingtransformation where you will find:

 A link to the discussion paper

 Information about how to provide feedback

 A short optional survey

The consultation will close on November 25, 2019.

I look forward to your feedback on the transformation of building code service delivery. 
Please note that Chief Building Officials will also receive notification of this 
transformation initiative and associated opportunities for engagement.

If you have any questions about the consultation, please contact ministry staff at 
buildingtransformation@ontario.ca.

Sincerely,

Steve Clark
Minister

c: Municipal Clerks

Letter - Building Code Services Transformation

Page 205 of 223

mailto:buildingtransformation@ontario.ca
http://www.ontario.ca/buildingtransformation


  

 

Subject: Proposed changes to the Aggregate Resources Act  

 

Dear Head of Council and Clerk,   

The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry recognizes the critical role Ontario's 

municipalities play in the lives of Ontarians. We value our strong collaborative 

partnership with municipalities and the associations that represent their interests.  

We want to advise you that the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry is 

proceeding with changes to the way aggregates are managed in Ontario and would like 

to invite municipal input on the changes we are proposing.  

We have released an aggregate proposal that aims to cut red tape, create jobs, and 

promote economic growth within Ontario’s aggregate industry — an industry that 

generates $1.6 billion in production revenue annually and supports more than 28,000 

jobs in aggregate-related sectors.  

The proposal draws on feedback from industry, municipalities, Indigenous communities 

and other stakeholders. It will create opportunities for growth while maintaining a 

steadfast commitment to protecting the environment and addressing impacts to 

communities. 

A summary of the proposed legislative changes, and instructions for providing feedback, 

can be found on the Environmental Registry (ERO# 019-0556) at the following link: 

https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-0556 

My ministry is also considering some regulatory changes and would appreciate any 

initial feedback you have on these topics. As a next step, we expect to consult further 

on specific details related to regulatory proposals at a later date. I look forward to your 

input on these proposals and potential future changes.  

If you have any questions about the proposed changes, please contact Andrew 

MacDonald, Resource Development Section, at 705-755-1222 or 

aggregates@ontario.ca. 

Letter - Proposed Changes to the Aggregate Resources Act

Page 206 of 223

https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-0556
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-0556
mailto:aggregates@ontario.ca
mailto:aggregates@ontario.ca


 

Kind regards, 

  

Original signed by Ala Boyd   

Ala Boyd 

A/Director, Natural Resources Conservation Policy Branch 

Policy Division, Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry 

300 Water Street, 2 South 

Peterborough, ON K9J 3C7 

Telephone: 705-755-1241 

Facsimilie: 705-755-1971 

ala.boyd@ontario.ca 

  

 

Letter - Proposed Changes to the Aggregate Resources Act

Page 207 of 223

mailto:ala.boyd@ontario.ca
mailto:ala.boyd@ontario.ca


Joint and Several Liability Consultation (Township of Springwater)

Page 208 of 223



Joint and Several Liability Consultation (Township of Springwater)

Page 209 of 223



Joint and Several Liability Consultation (Township of Springwater)

Page 210 of 223



Joint and Several Liability Consultation (Township of Springwater)

Page 211 of 223



Resolution - Pupil Accommodation Review Guideline (North Glengarry)

Page 212 of 223



 

Kiran Saini 
Deputy Town Clerk 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive  ksaini@newmarket.ca 

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  tel.:  905-953-5300, Ext. 2203  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 fax:  905-953-5100 

 

 

September 17, 2019 
 
Sent via email to: All Ontario Municipalities 
 
Attn: Municipal Clerk 
 
RE: More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 - Bill 108 Proposed Regulations 

 
I am writing to advise that Council, at its meeting held on September 9, 2019, adopted 
the following recommendations:  
 

1. That the report entitled Bill 108 Proposed Regulations, dated August 26, 2019 
be received; and, 

2. That following the September 9, 2019 Council meeting, the final version of the 
report entitled Bill 108 Proposed Regulations, dated August 26, 2019 be 
formally submitted to the province; and, 

3. That it be requested by the Town that the province release final drafts of the 
regulations associated with Bill 108 with a consultation period of no less than 
3 months; and, 

4. That a copy of this Motion be sent to all Ontario Municipalities requesting their 
support; and, 

5. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give effect 
to this resolution. 

 
Yours sincerely,  

 
 
Kiran Saini  
Deputy Town Clerk  
 
KS:aw 
 

Resolution - Bill 108 (Newmarket)

Page 213 of 223



Resolution - Legal Aid Funding Cuts (Chatham-Kent)

Page 214 of 223



Resolution - Legal Aid Funding Cuts (Chatham-Kent)

Page 215 of 223



 

 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Mayor Vic A. Bodnar     The Municipality of Hastings Highlands 
Mayor       P.O. Box 130, 33011 Hwy 62, Maynooth, ON K0L 2S0 

613 338-2811 Phone 
Suzanne Huschilt     1-877-338-2818 Toll Free 
Municipal Clerk      
 

 

September 12, 2019 

 
Hon. Christine Ellliot  
Minister of Health 
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care 
5th Floor 
777 Bay St. 
Toronto, ON M7A 2J3 
christine.elliott@pc.ola.org 

 
Dear Minister Elliott, 

 
Re: Mandatory Septic System Reports 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Please be advised that at its Regular Meeting of Council held on September 4, 2019 the Council 
of the Municipality of Hastings Highlands passed the following resolution: 
 
Resolution 559-2019 
 
WHEREAS the Federation of Ontario Cottagers’ Associations has released their latest report 
“Septic Re-inspection Programs in Ontario: A Guide for Lake Associations;” 
 
AND WHEREAS this municipality has serious concerns over current available septic re-
inspection information;  
 
AND WHEREAS numerous companies already perform a septic pumping service and could 
easily perform an additional service by simply filling out a three part one page report with one 
copy going to the homeowner, one to the municipality, and one for their own records. This would 
develop an ongoing database from which septic re-inspection programs could be generated. This 
report could include requirements such as a visual inspection by the operator on type of system, 
time, date, location, and noticeable system problems;  

Resolution - Mandatory Septic Reports (Hastings Highlands)

Page 216 of 223

mailto:christine.elliott@pc.ola.org


 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this council endorse such a mandatory reporting 
system and that letters be sent requesting support for this initiative to the following people; Anne 
Egan, President of the Ontario Onsite Wastewater Association, John FitzGibbon, Professor, 
University of Guelph, Liz Huff, Director Rural Ontario Municipal Associations, Terry Rees, 
Executive Director Federation of Ontario Cottagers’ Associations, Rick Phillips, Warden, 
Hastings County Council and Christine Elliott, Minister, Ontario Ministry of Health, our Local MP 
and MPP and all Ontario Municipalities.  
 

CARRIED AS AMENDED 

 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 

 
 
Vic A. Bodnar 
Mayor 
 
 

cc:  Anne Egan, Association President, Ontario Onsite Wastewater Association anne.egan@rjburnside.com 
John FitzGibbon, Professor, University of Guelph jfitzgib@uoguelph.ca 

 ROMA roma@roma.on.ca 

 Terry Rees, Executive Director, FOCA  info@foca.on.ca 

 Rick Phillips, Warden, Hastings County PhillipsRick@hastingscounty.com 
Mike Bossio, MP, Hastings-Lennox and Addington Mike.Bossio@parl.gc.ca 

 Daryl Kramp, MPP, Hastings-Lennox and Addington daryl.kramp@pc.ola.org 
 All Ontario Municipalities 
 

Resolution - Mandatory Septic Reports (Hastings Highlands)

Page 217 of 223

mailto:anne.egan@rjburnside.com
mailto:jfitzgib@uoguelph.ca
mailto:roma@roma.on.ca
mailto:info@foca.on.ca
mailto:PhillipsRick@hastingscounty.com
mailto:Mike.Bossio@parl.gc.ca
mailto:daryl.kramp@pc.ola.org


From: Karen Martin
Subject: Township of Zorra Resolution of Council re: UTRCA
Date: September-11-19 3:40:46 PM
Attachments: image003.png

Good afternoon,
 
Please be advised the Township of Zorra Council passed the following resolution at
the September 4, 2019 Council Meeting:
 
“WHEREAS the Township of Zorra is an environmentally conscious
community;
 
AND WHEREAS the Township of Zorra is a member of the Upper Thames River
Conservation Authority (UTRCA) and has a representative on the board of
directors of the UTRCA;
 
AND WHEREAS the board of directors determines the policies, priorities and
budget of the UTRCA;
 
AND WHEREAS the UTRCA provides the Township of Zorra with expert advice
on the environmental impact of land use planning proposals and that the
Township of Zorra does not have staff with comparable expertise or
experience;
 
AND WHEREAS the UTRCA provides programs to the residents of Zorra and
other member municipalities that include recreation, education, water quality
monitoring, reduction of vegetation loss and soil erosion, preservation of
species at risk as well as protecting life and property through a variety of
measures;
 
Therefore, be it resolved, that the Township of Zorra supports continuation of
the programs of the UTRCA, both mandatory and non‐mandatory, and that no
programs of the UTRCA or of the other Conservation Authorities in Ontario be
“wound down” at this time.
 
And that, the Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks give clear
direction as to what programs are considered mandatory and non‐mandatory
and how those programs will be funded in the future;
 
And that this resolution be forwarded to the Minister of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks, Premier Doug Ford, MPP Ernie Hardeman, the
Association of Municipalities of Ontario, the Upper Thames River Conservation
Authority, Conservation Ontario and all Ontario municipalities.”
 
Thanks,
 

Resolution - Upper Thames River Conservation Authority (Township of Zorra)

Page 218 of 223

mailto:kmartin@zorra.on.ca






  
 
Individuals who submit letters and other information to Council should be aware that
any personal information contained within their communications may become part of
the public record and may be made available to the public through the
Council/Committee Agenda process.
 

Resolution - Upper Thames River Conservation Authority (Township of Zorra)

Page 219 of 223

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Township-of-Zorra/1475527536047957
https://twitter.com/ZorraTwp


 

 

 

COUNCIL RESOLUTION 
September 17, 2019 

 

I, Jeanne Harfield, Deputy Clerk for the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills, do 
hereby certify that the above is a true copy of a resolution enacted by Council.  
    

 

 

________________________________ 

Jeanne Harfield 
Deputy Clerk 

 

 
Resolution re: Reducing Litter & Waste in Our Communities 

 
Resolution No. 520-19 
Moved by Councillor Ferguson 
Seconded by Deputy Mayor Minnille 
THAT That the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills endorse and 
supports the resolution of the Municipality of Bluewater calling upon the 
Province of Ontario, through the discussion paper entitled "Reducing Litter and 
Waste in our Communities", to review and implement a deposit/return program 
for all single use plastic, aluminum and metal drink containers; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Province of Ontario review current producer 
requirements and look for extended producer responsibility for all packaging; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this motion be sent to the Premier of Ontario; 
the Minister of the Environment, Conservation, and Parks; the Minister of 
Municipal Affairs; the Association of Municipalities of Ontario; the County of 
Huron, and all municipalities in the Province of Ontario. 
 

CARRIED 
 

Support Resolution - Reducing Litter (Mississippi Mills)

Page 220 of 223



UNFINISHED BUSINESS REPORT 

Presented to Council October 7, 2019 

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES  

No. Item Date Added Expected 
Completion 

Status  Update 

1. Docks on Township 
Property 

JAN 2016 Fall 2019 Ongoing -Scheduling meetings with adjacent 
property owners in October. 

2. Fire Protection Ponds MAY 2016 Fall 2019 Ongoing -Meeting set up to discuss fire supply on 
Midway Road on October 11th. 
-Will follow up with PacTiv on progress 
with the Richmond Rd. pond.  

3. Municipal Servicing 
from City of Cornwall 

MAY 2016 Fall 2019 Ongoing -City is to provide cost estimates for our 
review by the end of September. 
-Meeting set up with City in October. 

4. Private Roads 
(development of 
document) 

FEB 2017 Fall 2019 Ongoing -Will post request for policies from other 
municipalities on the OGRA Interchange 
(website). 

5.  Williamstown Garage 
& Fire Hall 

MAY 2018 OCT 2019 On Hold -Design completed. 
-Township has submitted a letter to the 
Airport Commission to advise of the 
plans to build the Public Works facility 
and to request permission to construct 
the facility on this property and to also 
consider a severance of the north end of 
the property. 
-An appraisal to determine the value of 
the land has been requested.  

6.  LED Streetlights 
(Glen Walter) 

MAR 2019 Fall 2019 Ongoing -Cornwall Electric to contact us this Fall. 

7.  Andrea Ave. Traffic 
Concerns 

APR 2019 September 
2019 

Ongoing  -Will arrange a meeting with the owners 
of Tim Horton’s to review changes to 
parking as approved by Council. 

Unfinished Business Listing - October 7, 2019

Page 221 of 223



8. Review of 
Procurement By-law 

JULY 2019 FALL 2019 Ongoing -No update 

9. Peanut Line Bridge AUG 2019 TBD Ongoing -Ongoing evaluation by Township. 
-Engineer to provide report in October. 

10. Smithfield Park 
Building 

SEPT 2019 TBD Ongoing -Will review design and tender process 
and retender by the end of 2019.  

COMMUNITY SERVICES 

11. Hamlet Signage 
Policy 

JUNE 2019 TBD Ongoing -No update 

CORPORATE SERVICES 

12. Review of Water 
Rates 

APR 2019 FALL 2019 Ongoing -Reviewing potential cost (ie. under 
$50,000 choose EVB as they know our 
water system) 

13. Water Service 
Delivery Review 

AUG 2019 FALL 2019 Ongoing -High level response from engineering 
firm has been received.  

14. Water Bill Design  AUG 2019 FALL 2019 Ongoing -No progress to report 

15. Cornwall Golf & 
Country Club 
Request 

AUG 2019  FALL 2019 On Hold -Minimum unit charge pending water 
rate review (on hold) 
-Additional requests to offset costs, 
review partnership opportunities 
incoming but unknown to date. 
  

16. Strategic Plan JUNE 2019 FALL 2019 Ongoing -No progress to report  

FIRE SERVICES 

17. Lancaster Fire Hall 
Generator Purchase 

DEC 2018 AUG 2019 Ongoing -Unit has arrived, contractor connections 
in October. 

18. Farm 911/Emily 
Project 

JUNE 2019 Fall 2019 Ongoing -Report going to County Council on 
October 21st.  

 

Unfinished Business Listing - October 7, 2019

Page 222 of 223



           SG-M-19 

 

 THE CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH GLENGARRY 

BY-LAW 66-2019 

FOR THE YEAR 2019 
 

 

BEING A BY-LAW TO ADOPT, CONFIRM AND RATIFY MATTERS 

DEALT WITH BY RESOLUTION. 
 

WHEREAS s.5 (3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that the powers of 

municipal corporation are to be exercised by its Council by by-law; and 

 

WHEREAS it is deemed expedient that the proceedings, decisions and 

votes of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of South 

Glengarry at this meeting be confirmed and adopted by by-law; 

 

THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of South 

Glengarry enacts as follows: 

 

1. THAT the action of the Council at its regular meeting of October 7, 2019 in 

respect to each motion passed and taken by the Council at its meetings, is 

hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed, as if each resolution or other 

action was adopted, ratified and confirmed by its separate by-law; and; 

 

2. THAT the Mayor and the proper officers of the Township of South 

Glengarry are hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary to 

give effect to the said action, or to obtain approvals where required, and 

except where otherwise provided, The Mayor and the Clerk are hereby 

directed to execute all documents necessary in that behalf and to affix the 

corporate seal of the Township to all such documents. 

 
3. THAT if due to the inclusion of a particular resolution or resolutions this 

By-law would be deemed invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction then 

Section 1 to this By-law shall be deemed to apply to all motions passed 

except those that would make this By-law invalid. 

 
4. THAT where a “Confirming By-law” conflicts with other by-laws the other 

by-laws shall take precedence. Where a “Confirming By-law” conflicts with 

another “Confirming By-law” the most recent by-law shall take 

precedence. 

 

 READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME, PASSED, SIGNED AND 

 SEALED IN OPEN COUNCIL THIS 7TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2019. 

 

 

 MAYOR:                                     CLERK:______________________                                 

                                                  

Confirming By-law 66-2019

Page 223 of 223


	Agenda
	Pecuniary Interest Form
	Previous Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019
	William Street Reconstruction - Kevin MacCulloch (EVB Engineering)
	Glengarry Sports Palace Agreement (K. Campeau)
	Appointment of Deputy Clerk (K. Campeau)
	Appointment of Lottery Licence Issuer (K. Campeau)
	Revised Job Description - Deputy Chief Building Official (J. Haley)
	Drinking Water Quality Management Standard Endorsement (E. MacDonald)
	Place St. Laurent Phase 5 Capacity Allocation (E. MacDonald)
	Procurement 10-2019 - Glengarry Nor’Westers & Loyalist Museum Bathroom Renovations (E. MacDonald)
	Stone Dust Quotation (E. MacDonald)
	Draft Tree Canopy and Natural Vegetation Policy (J. Haley)
	Martintown Mill Harvest Dinner - Request for Donation (L. McDonald)
	Notice of Motion for Consideration At This Meeting - Provincial Electronic Delegations (S. Jaworski)
	Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes - September 16, 2019
	Fall Planning and Building Open House and Information Session
	Hazardous Waste Day
	Consent Application B-78-19
	Consent Application B-79-19
	Consent Application B-82-19
	Notice of Consent Decision
	Consent Summary 2019
	SDG Council September Newsletter
	OGRA Newsletter
	Letter - Building Code Services Transformation
	Letter - Proposed Changes to the Aggregate Resources Act
	Joint and Several Liability Consultation (Township of Springwater)
	Resolution - Pupil Accommodation Review Guideline (North Glengarry)
	Resolution - Bill 108 (Newmarket)
	Resolution - Legal Aid Funding Cuts (Chatham-Kent)
	Resolution - Mandatory Septic Reports (Hastings Highlands)
	Resolution - Upper Thames River Conservation Authority (Township of Zorra)
	Support Resolution - Reducing Litter (Mississippi Mills)
	Unfinished Business Listing - October 7, 2019
	Confirming By-law 66-2019



